INVITATION TO BID

STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM CLEANING SERVICES

ITB No. 2021-24



The Town of Miami Lakes Council:

Mayor Manny Cid
Vice Mayor Luis Collazo
Councilmember Carlos Alvarez
Councilmember Joshua Dieguez
Councilmember Tony Fernandez
Councilmember Jeffrey Rodriguez
Councilmember Marilyn Ruano

Edward Pidermann, Town Manager
The Town of Miami Lakes
6601 Main Street
Miami Lakes, Florida 33014

| Date Advertised | April 2, 2021 |
|-----------------|-------------------------|
| Bids Due | 11:00 AM April 23, 2021 |

Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services

ITB 2021-24

Table of Contents

| Section A. NOTICE TO BIDDERS | 5 |
|---|----|
| Section B. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS | 6 |
| B1 DEFINITION OF TERMS | 6 |
| B2 BID PROCESS | |
| B2.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR BID PROCESS | |
| B2.02 PREPARATION OF BID | |
| B2.03 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES | 8 |
| B2.04 LINE-ITEM QUANTITIES | 8 |
| B2.05 ADDITIONAL LINE-ITEM PRICING | 8 |
| B2.06 BID PREPARATION COSTS AND RELATED COSTS | 8 |
| B2.07 QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS | |
| B2.08 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS | |
| B2.09 INTERPRETATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS | 9 |
| B2.10 POSTPONEMENT OF BID OPENING DATE | Ç |
| B2.11 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS | |
| B2.12 WITHDRAWAL OF BID | 10 |
| B2.13 OPENING OF BIDS | 10 |
| B2.14 LOCAL PREFERENCE | 10 |
| B2.15 TIE BIDS | 10 |
| B2.16 AWARD OF CONTRACT(S) | 10 |
| B2.17 BID PROTEST PROCESS | 11 |
| B2.18 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT | 11 |
| B3 REQUIRED FORMS & AFFIDAVITS | 11 |
| B3.01 COLLUSION | 11 |
| B3.02 RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE TOWN AFFIDAVIT | 11 |
| B3.03 CONFLICT OF INTEREST/ANTI-KICKBACK | 11 |
| B3.04 PUBLIC RECORDS AFFIDAVIT | |
| B3.05 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT | 13 |

| Section C. GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS | 13 |
|--|----|
| C1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS | 13 |
| C1.01 GENERALLY | 13 |
| C1.02 RULES AND REGULATIONS | 13 |
| C1.03 HOURS FOR PERFORMING WORK | 13 |
| C1.04 SUBCONTRACTORS | 13 |
| C1.05 CONSULTANT SERVICES | 14 |
| C1.06 AUTHORITY OF THE PROJECT MANAGER | 14 |
| C1.07 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR | 15 |
| C1.08 THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES | 15 |
| C1.09 ASSIGNMENT OR SALE OF CONTRACT | 15 |
| C1.10 TIME FOR COMPLETION | 15 |
| C1.11 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE OF LITIGATION | 15 |
| C1.12 NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT | 15 |
| C1.13 SEVERABILITY | 16 |
| C1.14 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTAIN ALL TERMS | 16 |
| C1.15 ENTIRE AGREEMENT | 16 |
| C1.16 INTENTION OF THE TOWN | 16 |
| C1.17 PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS | 16 |
| C1.18 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS | 17 |
| C1.19 PURCHASE AND DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND INSTALLATION | 17 |
| C1.20 VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT | 17 |
| C1.21 OWNERSHIP OF THE WORK | 17 |
| C1.22 TOWN LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES | 17 |
| C1.23 TAXES | 18 |
| C1.24 REMOVAL OF UNSATISFACTORY PERSONNEL | 18 |
| C1.25 DEFECTIVE OR NON-COMPLIANT WORK | 18 |
| C1.26 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS | 19 |
| C1.27 NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, & ADA | 19 |
| C1.28 NOTICES | 19 |
| C2 INDEMNITY & INSURANCE | 20 |
| C2.01 INDEMNIFICATION | 20 |

| C2.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES TO THE WORK | 20 |
|---|----|
| C2.03 DEFENSE OF CLAIMS | 20 |
| C2.04 INSURANCE | 20 |
| C3 PUBLIC RECORDS | 22 |
| C3.01 ACCESS, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF RECORDS | 22 |
| C4 CONTRACT MODIFICATION AND DISPUTE PROCESS | 23 |
| C4.01 CHANGE ORDERS | 23 |
| C4.02 FORCE MAJEURE | 24 |
| C4.03 EXTENSION OF TIME | 24 |
| C4.04 EXCUSABLE DELAY, NON-COMPENSABLE | 26 |
| C4.05 CLAIMS | 26 |
| C4.06 CONTINUING THE WORK | 27 |
| C4.07 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION | 27 |
| C4.08 STOP WORK ORDER | 27 |
| C4.09 MATERIALITY AND WAIVER OF BREACH | 28 |
| C4.10 TIME IN WHICH TO BRING ACTION AGAINST THE TOWN | 28 |
| C4.11 CONTRACT EXTENSION | 28 |
| C5 EARLY TERMINATION & DEFAULT | 28 |
| C5.01 SET-OFFS, WITHOLDING, AND DEDUCTIONS | 28 |
| C5.02 CONTRACTOR DEFAULT | 28 |
| C5.03 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE | 29 |
| C5.04 REMEDIES AVAILABLE TO THE TOWN | 30 |
| C5.05 FUNDS AVAILABILITY | 30 |
| C6 PAYMENT PROCESS | 30 |
| C6.01 COMPENSATION | 30 |
| C6.02 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES | 30 |
| C6.03 LINE-ITEM PRICING | 31 |
| C6.04 LINE-ITEM QUANTITIES | 31 |
| C6.05 ADDITIONAL LINE-ITEM PRICING | 31 |
| C6.06 REIMBURSIBLE EXPENSES | 31 |
| Section D. SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS | |
| D1 SCOPE OF WORK | 27 |

| ATTACHMENT A. BIDDER'S PROPOSAL | 37 |
|--|----|
| CORPORATE RESOLUTION | 36 |
| CONTRACT EXECUTION FORM | 35 |
| D9 WARRANTY | 32 |
| D8 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES | |
| D7 CONTRACT TERM | |
| D6 INVOICING | 33 |
| D5 DAILY LOG | |
| D4 CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) INSPECTION | 33 |
| D3 STORM DRAINAGE PIPING, MANHOLESM AND JUNCTION BOXES | 33 |
| D2 CATCH BASINS | 32 |

SECTION A. NOTICE TO BIDDERS

ITB Name:

Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services

ITB No.:

2021-24

Bids Due:

11:00 AM EST, April 23, 2021

Solicitation Overview:

The Town of Miami Lakes (the "Town") will be accepting sealed Bids from qualified firms to provide storm drainage system cleaning services for the Town's Public Works Department, in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in this Invitation to Bid (ITB)

Bidders are to submit one (1) original and two (2) physical copies of their Bid, with original signatures together with one (1) additional virtual copy of the Bid on a Flash Drive. Sealed Bids, including the Flash Drive <u>must</u> be received by the Town of Miami Lakes, Town Clerk at 6601 Main Street, Miami Lakes, Florida **no later than 11:00 AM on April 23, 2021,** at which time the Bids will be opened.

General Instructions:

Bidders must carefully review all the materials contained herein and prepare their Bids accordingly. The detailed requirements set forth below will be used to evaluate the Bids and failure of a Bidder to provide the information requested for a specific requirement may render their Bid non-responsive and will result in rejection.

Copies of the ITB will only be made available on the Town's website, Public Purchase, and the Onvia DemandStar ("DemandStar") website. Copies of the ITB, including all related documents can be obtained by visiting the Town's website at http://www.miamilakes-fl.gov/, under Current Solicitations on the Procurement Department page, on Public Purchase at www.publicpurchase.com, or on DemandStar's website at www.demandstar.com. If you use Public Purchase or DemandStar, it is strongly recommended that you register with them to receive notifications about this solicitation.

Minimum Requirements to Submit a Response:

To be eligible for award of this project, bidders must:

- 1. Possess a minimum of five (5) years of experience performing storm drainage system cleaning services;
- 2. Have completed at least three (3) storm drainage system cleaning projects of similar size, scope, and complexity performed within the last five (5) years, demonstrated through client reference forms (Form CRL); and
- 3. Provide copy of any licenses applicable to business such as Miami-Dade County Occupational License, etc.

The Town will consider a Bid as responsive where a Bidder has less than the stipulated minimum number of years of experience solely where the Bidder has undergone a name change and such change of name has been filed with the State of Florida.

Pursuant to subsection (t) "Cone of Silence" of Section 2-11.1 "Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance" of Miami Dade County, public notice is hereby given that a "Cone of Silence" is imposed concerning this solicitation. The "Cone of Silence" prohibits certain communications concerning the substance of RFP's, RFQ's or Bids, until such time as the Town Manager makes a written recommendation to the Town Council concerning the solicitation. Any questions concerning the substance of this or any other solicitation advertised by the Town must be submitted in writing to procurement@miamilakes-fl.gov while the Cone of Silence is in effect. No other communications, oral or otherwise, will be accepted. Failure to comply with the Cone of Silence may result in the rejection of a Submittal. For additional information concerning the Cone of Silence please refer to Section 2-11.1 of Miami-Dade County Code.

SECTION B. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

B1 DEFINITION OF TERMS

- Award means that the Town Manager or Town Council, as applicable, has approved the award of a contract.
- 2. Bid means the Submittal tendered by a Bidder in response to this solicitation, which includes the price, authorized signature and all other information or documentation required by the Invitation to Bid ("ITB") at the time of submittal.
- **3. Bid Form** means the form that contains the goods or services to be purchased and that must be completed and submitted with the Bid.
- **4. Bidder** means any person, firm or corporation, or its duly authorized representative tendering a Submittal in response to this solicitation.
- **5. Change Order** means a written document ordering a change in the Contract price or Contract time or a material change in the Work.
- **6. Completion Time** means the number of calendar days specified for Final Completion of the Project.
- 7. Cone of Silence means the time period and method of communications as required by Section 2-11.1 of the Miami-Dade County Code, which state that the Cone of Silence shall be in effect from the date the ITB is issued until the Town Manager issues a written recommendation.
- **8. Consultant** means a firm that has entered into a separate agreement with the Town for the provision of professional services.
- **9. Contract** means the ITB, the addendum, and the Bid documents that have been executed by the Bidder and the Town subsequent to approval of award by the Town.
- **10. Contract Documents** means the Contract as may be amended from time to time, and plans, specifications, addendum, clarifications, directives, Change Orders, payments, and other such documents issued under or relating to the Contract.
- 11. Contractor means the Successful Bidder who is issued a Purchase Order, Contract, Blanket Purchase Order agreement, or Term Contract to provide goods or services to the Town and who will be responsible for the acceptable performance of any Work and for the payment of all legal debts pertaining to the Work under the Contract.
- **12. Cure** means the action taken by the Contractor promptly, after receipt of written notice from the Town of a breach of the Contract Documents, which must be performed at no cost to the Town, to repair, replace, correct, or remedy all material, equipment, or other elements of the Work or the Contract Documents affected by such breach, or to otherwise make good and eliminate such breach.
- **13. Cure Period** means the period of time in which the Contractor is required to remedy deficiencies in the Work or compliance with the Contract Documents after receipt of a written Notice to Cure from the Town identifying the deficiencies and the time to Cure.
- 14. Days mean calendar days unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
- **15. Defective Work** means (a) Work that is unsatisfactory, deficient, or damaged, does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, test, or approval, or (b) Work associated with punch list items that the Contractor fails to complete within a reasonable time after issuance of the punch list by the Project Manager.
- **16. Design Documents, Plans or Sketch** means any construction plans and specifications, or graphic representation included as part of the Contract.
- **17. Field Directive** means a written directive to effect changes to the Work, issued by the Project Manager, Consultant or the Town Department Director that may affect the ITB Contract price or time.

- **18. Final Completion** means the date the Contractor has completed all the Work and submitted all documentation required by the Contract Documents.
- **19. Inspector** means an authorized representative of the Town assigned to make necessary inspections of materials furnished by Design-Build Firm and of the Work performed by the Contractor. The Town, at is sole discretion may hire a professional consultant to perform the inspections.
- **20. Materials** mean goods or equipment incorporated into the Work or used or consumed in the performance of the Work.
- **21. Notice of Award** means any correspondence from the Town that informs the successful bidder of a contract award for this ITB.
- **22. Project** means a task or series of tasks that the Contractor must complete in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- **23. Project Manager** means the individual assigned by the Town Manager or designee to manage a Project.
- 24. Request for Information (RFI) means a request from the Contractor seeking an interpretation or clarification relative to the Contract Documents. The RFI, which must be clearly marked RFI, must clearly and concisely set forth the issue(s) or item(s) requiring clarification or interpretation and why the response is required. The RFI must set forth the Contractor's interpretation or understanding of the document(s) in question, along with the reason for such understanding.
- **25. Responsive Bidder** means the Bidder whose Bid conforms in all material respects to the terms and conditions included in the ITB.
- **26. Responsible Bidder** means a Bidder who has the capability in all respects to perform in full the contract requirements, as stated in the ITB, and the integrity and reliability that will assure good faith performance.
- **27. Subcontractor** means a person, firm or corporation having a direct contract with Contractor, including one who furnishes material, equipment, or services necessary to perform the Work.
- 28. Submittal means the documents prepared and submitted by the Bidder in response to this ITB.
- 29. Substantial Completion means that point at which the Project is at a level of completion in substantial compliance with the Contract Documents and is fit for use in its intended purpose. Substantial Compliance will not be deemed to have occurred until any and all governmental entities, with regulatory authority or which have jurisdiction over the Work, have conducted all final inspections, and approved the Work. Beneficial use or occupancy will not be the sole factor in determining whether Substantial Completion has been achieved unless a temporary certificate of completion has been issued.
- 30. Town means the Town Council of the Town of Miami Lakes or the Town Manager, as applicable.
- **31. Town Manager** means the duly appointed chief administrative officer of the Town of Miami Lakes or designee.
- **32. Unbalanced Bid** means pricing that is not consistent with pricing in the industry or with market conditions and a comparison to the pricing submitted by other Bidders.
- **33. Work** as used herein refers to all reasonably necessary and inferable labor, material, equipment, and services, whether or not specifically stated, to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Contract Documents.

B2 BID PROCESS

B2.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR BID PROCESS

The ITB, Bid Form and any addendum that may be issued constitute the complete set of requirements for this ITB. The Bid Form page(s), and all forms contained in the ITB must be

completed, signed, and submitted in accordance with the requirements of Section B. All Bids must be typewritten or filled in with pen and ink and must be signed in <u>blue ink</u> by an officer or employee having authority to bind the company or firm. Errors, corrections, or changes on any document must be initialed by the signatory of the Bid. Bidder will not be allowed to modify its Bid after the opening time and date.

(i) Joint Venture or Teaming Agreements

Joint venture firms or teaming agreements will not be considered for award under this ITB.

B2.02 PREPARATION OF BID

The Bid Form contains multiple line items, and the Bidder must provide prices for all line items and must provide the price for the total Bid amount. <u>Failure to include pricing on all line items as well as the total Bid Amount will result in the Bid being found non-responsive</u>.

Bidder must use the blank Town forms provided herein. The Bid must be signed and acknowledged by the Bidder in accordance with the directions within this ITB. Failure to utilize or fully complete the Town's forms may result in a determination that the Bid is non-responsive.

A Bid will be considered non-responsive if it is conditioned on modifications, changes, or revisions to the terms and conditions or of the ITB.

All Bid prices are to include the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment, all overhead/indirect expenses, and profit, necessary for the completion of the Work, except as may be otherwise expressly provided for in the Contract Documents.

B2.03 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

The quantities stated on the Bid Form are solely estimates of what the Town anticipates its needs are for the initial year of the Contract. The stated quantities do not reflect the actual quantities to be ordered and the Town has not established any minimum quantities and no guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to a Contractor. The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make adjustment to the number and/or location of the Bid items. The failure of the Town to order any minimum quantities does not form any basis for a claim by the Contractor for lost work or profits.

B2.04 LINE-ITEM QUANTITIES

The estimated quantities will be used solely for bid comparison purposes for the Town to determine the lowest responsive and responsible. No guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to a Contractor.

B2.05 ADDITIONAL LINE-ITEM PRICING

The Town reserves the right to request price quotes for additional items not contained in the initial award. Should the Town add any additional line items the Town will do so through the Change Order process.

B2.06 BID PREPARATION COSTS AND RELATED COSTS

All costs involved in the preparation and submission of a Bid to the Town, or any work performed in connection therewith is the sole responsibility of the Bidder(s). No payment will be made for any Bid received, or for any other effort required of or made by the Bidder prior to commencement of Work as defined by any contract duly approved by the Town Council or Town Manager. The Town will bear no responsibility for any cost associated with any judicial proceedings resulting from the ITB process.

B2.07 QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

Bidder, by virtue of submitting its Bid, certifies that it is qualified and capable of performing the Work required under the Contract. To qualify for award, Bidder must meet the minimum qualification requirements stated in Section A. Bidders must complete the attached Questionnaire Form and include it with their Bid. Failure to complete and submit this form or to meet the minimum qualifications will result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive. The Town may at its sole discretion allow a Bidder to amend an incomplete Questionnaire during the evaluation process provided that the Bidder has included the Questionnaire in its Bid.

B2.08 EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

It is the responsibility of each Bidder, before submitting a Bid in response to this ITB to:

- a. Carefully review the ITB, including any Addendum and notify the Town of any conflicts, errors, or discrepancies.
- b. Take into account federal, state and local, including, without limitation, the Town's Code, and Miami-Dade County and the State of Florida's statutes laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may affect a Bidder's ability to perform the Work.
- c. Study and carefully correlate Contractor's observations with the requirements of the ITB.

The submission of a Bid in response to this solicitation constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that it will comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents and that without exception, the Bid is premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required under the Contract Documents and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance of the Work.

B2.09 INTERPRETATIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

All questions about the meaning or intent of the ITB, must be directed in writing and <u>submitted by e-mail</u> to the Procurement Office, at <u>procurement@miamilakes-fl.gov</u>. Interpretation or clarifications considered necessary by the Town in response to such questions will be issued by means of an addendum. All addenda will be posted on the Town's website, Public Purchase, and DemandStar. <u>It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to obtain all addenda</u> by visiting the Town's website. Written questions must be received no less than ten (10) days prior to bid opening. Only questions answered by written addenda will be binding. Verbal interpretation or clarifications will be without legal effect.

B2.10 POSTPONEMENT OF BID OPENING DATE

The Town reserves the right to postpone the date for receipt and opening of Bids and will make a reasonable effort to give at least five (5) calendar days' notice prior to the Bid opening date, of any such postponement to prospective Bidders. Any such postponement will be announced through the issuance of an addendum posted to the Town's website.

B2.11 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF BIDS

The Town reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, with or without cause, to waive technical errors and informalities, or to cancel or re-issue this solicitation. The Town also reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder who has failed to previously perform under a contract or who is in arrears to the Town.

(i) Unbalanced Bids

The Town reserves the right to reject any Bid where the line-item pricing is determined to be unbalanced. Such determination will be made at the sole discretion of the Town. An Unbalanced Bid price, which will be determined at the sole discretion of the Town, includes, but is not

limited to, pricing that is not consistent with pricing in the industry or with market conditions and a comparison to the pricing submitted by other Bidders. An Unbalanced Bid typically occurs where the prices for one or more line items are too low a price to cover the actual cost to perform the Work (including overhead and profit) or too high a price where excessive profit will occur.

B2.12 WITHDRAWAL OF BID

Bidder warrants, by virtue of bidding, that its Bid and the prices quoted in its Bid are firm and irrevocable for acceptance by the Town for a period of one hundred twenty (120) calendar days from the date of the Bid submittal deadline. Bidder may change or withdraw its Bid prior to the Bid submittal deadline. All changes or withdrawals must be made in writing to the Town Clerk. Oral/Verbal modifications will not be valid. Once the Town makes an Award, the Bid cannot be withdrawn.

B2.13 OPENING OF BIDS

Bids will be publicly opened at the appointed time and place stated in the ITB and the names of the Bidders will be announced. The Town at its sole option may read the Bid prices. Late Bids will not be opened. Town staff is not responsible for the premature opening of a Bid if the Bid is not properly sealed, addressed, and labeled. Bidders or their authorized agents are invited to be present at the Bid opening. Any additional information on the Bid Submittals will be made available in accordance with Florida Statute 119.071, Paragraph (b) of subsection (1), item 2, as amended. Review of the Bid Submittals by Town staff will determine the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder(s).

B2.14 LOCAL PREFERENCE

This ITB is subject to local preference under Section 13 of Town Ordinance 17-203. In order to qualify, Bidders seeking preference must submit the Local Vendor Preference Certification Form with all required supporting documentation. The Local Vendor Preference Certification Form can be found on the Town's website at http://www.miamilakes-fl.gov.

B2.15 TIE BIDS

Preference shall be given to businesses with Drug-Free Workplace programs. Whenever two (2) or more bids which are equal in price, the Award will be determined in accordance with Florida Statute 287.133(2)(a), the Drug-Free Workplace Act. Where tie Bids still exist, the Award will be made to one of the Bidders at the sole discretion of the Town Manager.

B2.16 AWARD OF CONTRACT(S)

The Town anticipates awarding a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder(s) that is in the best interest of the Town.

The Town may require demonstration of competency and, at its sole discretion, conduct site visit(s) and inspections of the Bidder's place of business, require the Bidder to furnish documentation or require the Bidder to attend a meeting to determine the Bidder's qualifications and ability to meet the terms and conditions of this Contract. The Town will consider, but not be limited to, such factors as financial capability, labor force, equipment, experience, knowledge of the trade work to be performed, the quantity of Work being performed by the Contractor and past performance on Town and other contracts. In no case will the Award be made until all necessary investigations have been made into the responsibility of the Bidder and the Town is satisfied that the Bidder(s) is qualified to perform the Work.

B2.17 BID PROTEST PROCESS

Any Bidder wishing to file a protest as to the requirements or award of this ITB must do so in accordance with Town Ordinance 12-142, Section 16, which is available at http://www.miamilakes-fl.gov.

B2.18 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

The Successful Bidder must, within fourteen (14) calendar days after receiving a Notice of Award, sign and deliver to the Town the Contract Execution and Certificate of Authority forms found in Section H, together with the acceptable bonds as required in Article B2.20, Performance & Payment Bonds, below.

B3 REQUIRED FORMS & AFFIDAVITS

B3.01 COLLUSION

Where two (2) or more related parties, as defined in this Article, each submit a response to an ITB₇ such submissions will be presumed to be collusive. The foregoing presumption may be rebutted by the presentation of evidence as to the extent of ownership, control, and management of such related parties in preparation and submission under such ITB. Related parties means employees, officers or the principals thereof which have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another firm or in which a parent company or the principals thereof of one Bidder have a direct or indirect ownership interest in another Bidder for the same project. ITB responses found to be collusive will be rejected. Bids must be developed independently. Where two or more Bidders have worked together, discussed the details of their bids prior to submission of their Bids or worked together in independently submitting Bids such actions will be deemed to be collusion.

B3.02 RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE TOWN AFFIDAVIT

The Bidder must identify any relationship the owners or employees have with the Town's elected officials or staff using the Relationships with the Town affidavit found in Section H, Required Attachments.

B3.03 CONFLICT OF INTEREST/ANTI-KICKBACK

Bidder must complete and submit the Conflict of Interest, Anti-Kickback and Proposer's Relationships to the Town Affidavits found in Section H, Required Attachments, in its Bid. Bidder certifies that its Bid is made independently of any assistance or participation from any Town employee, elected official, or contractor working for or on behalf of the Town, who assisted in any aspect with the development, evaluation, or award if this or any solicitation issued by the Town.

Town employees may not contract with the Town through any corporation, or business entity in which they or their immediate family members hold a controlling financial interest (e.g. ownership of five (5) percent or more). Immediate family members, including spouse, parents, and children are also prohibited from contracting with the Town without the prior approval of the Town Council.

Miami-Dade County Ordinance 2-11.1, Conflict of Interest & Code of Ethics ordinance or the provisions of Chapter 112, Part III, Fla. Stat., Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, as applicable and as amended are hereby included into and made a part of this solicitation.

B3.04 PUBLIC RECORDS AFFIDAVIT

The Town shall comply with the Public Records Law as provided by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and all applicable amendments. Applicants must invoke the exemptions to disclosure provided by law in the response to the solicitation and must identify the data or other materials to be protected by separate envelope and must state the reasons why such exclusion from public

disclosure is necessary. The submission of a response authorizes release of your firm's credit data to the Town.

All prospective Bidders must complete and submit the Compliance with Public Records Law affidavit with their Bid. Failure to submit the completed affidavit may result in the Bid being deemed non-responsive. Bidders, by submitting the Compliance with Public Records Law affidavit, specifically acknowledge their obligation to comply with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes.

B3.05 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT

In accordance with the Public Entity Crimes Act, (Section 287.133, Florida Statutes) a person or affiliate who is a contractor, who had been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to the Town, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases or real property to the Town, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with the Town in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.917, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. Violation of this section by the Contractor will result in rejection of the Bid, termination of the contract, and may cause Contractor debarment.

END OF SECTION

SECTION C. GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

C1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

C1.01 GENERALLY

The employee(s) of the Contractor will be considered to be at all times its employee(s), and not employee(s) or agent(s) of the Town or any of its departments.

The Contractor agrees that the Contractor will at all times employ, maintain and assign to the performance of the Contract a sufficient number of competent and qualified professionals and other personnel to meet the requirements of the Work to be performed.

The Contractor agrees to adjust staffing levels or to replace any staff personnel if requested by the Town Manager or designee, should the Town Manager or designee make a determination that said staffing is unacceptable or that any individual is not performing in a manner consistent with the requirements for such a position.

The Contractor represents that its staff personnel have the proper skills, training, background, knowledge, experience, rights, authorizations, integrity, character, and licenses necessary to perform the Work, in a competent and professional manner.

The Contractor must at all times cooperate with the Town, or the Consultant (if any) and coordinate its respective Work efforts to most effectively and efficiently progress the performance of the Work.

The Town, the Consultant (if any) and other agencies authorized by the Town, must have full access to the Project site at all times.

The apparent silence of the Contract Documents as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any Work to be done and materials to be furnished, will be regarded as meaning that only best practices are to prevail and only materials and workmanship of the best quality are to be used in the performance of the Work.

C1.02 RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Contractor must comply with all laws and regulations applicable to provision of services specified in the Contract Documents. The Contractor must be familiar with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, codes, and ordinances that affect the Work.

Where portions of the Work traverse or cross federal, state, county or local highways, roads, streets, or waterways, and the agency in control of such property has established standard specifications, rules or regulations governing items of Work that differ from these specifications, the most stringent specifications, rules, and regulations will apply.

C1.03 HOURS FOR PERFORMING WORK

All Work must be performed in accordance with the Town's Noise Ordinance No. 04-50 unless specifically stated otherwise herein or in a Work Order. Work to be performed outside these hours will require the prior written approval of the Project Manager.

C1.04 SUBCONTRACTORS

Contractor is solely responsible for all acts and omissions of its Subcontractors. Nothing in the Contract Documents creates any contractual relationship between any Subcontractor and the Town. Contractor is responsible for the timely payment of its Subcontractors and suppliers as required by Florida Statute Chapter 218.735. Failure to comply with these payment requirements will place the Contractor in default of the Contract.

Contractor must not employ any subcontractor against whom Town may have a reasonable objection.

Contractor must utilize the Subcontractors identified in its Bid submission. The replacement, addition, or deletion of any Subcontractor(s) will be subject to the prior written approval of the Project Manager.

Bidders that will be using a temporary labor company to provide staffing for the Project must complete the Leased Employees Affidavit Form and include it with their Bid. Failure to include this form may result in the Bid being rejected as non-responsive.

C1.05 CONSULTANT SERVICES

The Town, at its sole discretion, may hire a Consultant who may serve as the Town's representative for the Contract. Where a Consultant has been identified, the Consultant and the Project Manager will both have authority to act on behalf of the Town to the extent provided for in the Contract Documents, and where such authority has been delegated in writing by the Town Manager.

C1.06 AUTHORITY OF THE PROJECT MANAGER

The Town Manager hereby authorizes the Project Manager to determine, all questions of any nature whatsoever arising out of, under or in connection with, or in any way relating to or on account of the Work, and questions as to the interpretation of the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents. The Project Manager may delegate some of the authority contained in this Article to a designee.

The Contractor is bound by all determinations or orders of the Project Manager and must promptly respond to requests of the Project Manager, including the withdrawal or modification of any previous order, and regardless of whether the Contractor agrees with the Project Manager's determination or requests. Where requests are made orally, the Project Manager will follow up in writing, as soon thereafter as is practicable.

The Project Manager and/or designee shall have authority to act on behalf of the Town to the extent provided for by the Contract Documents, unless otherwise modified in writing by the Town. All instructions to the Contractor will be issued in writing through the Town Manager, Project Manager, or designee.

The Project Manager will not be responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures employed, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work and will not be responsible for the Contractor's failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

All interpretations and recommendations of the Project Manager and Consultant will be consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.

Interpretation of the Contract terms and conditions will be issued by the Town's Procurement Manager.

The Project Manager and/or designee will have authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever, in their opinion, it is considered necessary or advisable to ensure the proper completion of the Work the Project Manager or Consultant have authority to require special inspections or testing of the Work, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed.

The Project Manager's authority to act under this paragraph, or any decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority, shall not give rise to any duty or responsibility of the Project Manager owed to the Contractor, any subcontractor, supplier or any of their agents, employees, or any other person performing any of the Work.

The Project Manager is not responsible for the acts or omissions of the Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any of their agents or employees, or any other persons performing any of the Work.

C1.07 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

The Contractor is engaged as an independent business and agrees to perform Work as an independent contractor. In accordance with the status of an independent contractor, the Contractor covenants and agrees that the Contractor will conduct business in a manner consistent with that status, that the Contractor will not claim to be an officer or employee of the Town for any right or privilege applicable to an officer or employee of the Town, including, but not limited to: worker's compensation coverage; unemployment insurance benefits; social security coverage; retirement membership, or credit.

C1.08 THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Neither Contractor nor Town intends to directly or substantially benefit a third party by this Contract. Therefore, the parties agree that there are no third-party beneficiaries to this Contract and that no third party will be entitled to assert a claim against either of them based upon this Contract.

C1.09 ASSIGNMENT OR SALE OF CONTRACT

The performance of this Contract will not be transferred pledged, sold, delegated, or assigned, in whole or in part, by the Contractor without the prior written consent of the Town. It is understood that a sale of the majority of the stock or partnership shares of the Contractor, a merger or bulk sale, an assignment for the benefit of creditors will each be deemed transactions that would constitute an assignment or sale hereunder. The Town may request any information it deems necessary to review any request for assignment or sale of the Contract.

The Contractor must notify the Project Manager prior to any Assignment of the Contract, which must be approved by the Town for the transfer of the Contract. The Town may, at its sole discretion, elect not to approve the transfer of the Contract, which will result in the Contract being terminated in accordance with the Termination for Convenience provision of the Contract. Any transfer without Town approval will be cause for the Town to terminate this Contract for default and the Contractor will have no recourse from such termination.

Nothing herein will either restrict the right of the Contractor to assign monies due to, or to become due or be construed to hinder, prevent, or affect any assignment by the Contractor for the benefit of its creditors, made pursuant to applicable law.

C1.10 TIME FOR COMPLETION

Time is of the essence with regard to completion of the Work to be performed under the Contract. Delays and extensions of time may be allowed only in accordance with the provisions of the Contract. The time allowed for completion is provided for in the Special Terms & Conditions.

C1.11 APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE OF LITIGATION

This Contract will be enforceable in Miami-Dade County, Florida, and if legal action is necessary by either party with respect to the enforcement of any or all of the terms or conditions the sole venue will be Miami-Dade County, Florida.

C1.12 NON-EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT

This Contract shall not be deemed to create an exclusive relationship between the Town and the Contractor(s). The Town, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to perform, solicit or employ other parties or its own staff to perform Work or Services comparable to those covered herein.

C1.13 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision of the Contract Documents is determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then such unenforceable or unlawful provision will be excised from this Contract, and the remainder of the Contract Documents will continue in full force and effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the result of the deletion of such provision will materially and adversely affect the rights of either party, such party may elect, at its option, to terminate the Contract in its entirety. An election to terminate the Contract based upon this provision must be made within seven (7) calendar days after the finding by the Court becomes final.

C1.14 CONTRACT DOCUMENTS CONTAIN ALL TERMS

The Contract Documents and all documents incorporated herein by reference contain all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreement, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of the Contract Documents will be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto, or to vary any of the terms contained herein.

C1.15 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The Contract Documents, as they may be amended from time to time, represent the entire and integrated Contract between the Town and the Contractor and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, written or oral. This Contract may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered in any respect, at any time after the execution hereof, except by a written document executed with the same formality and equal dignity herewith. Waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of the Contract Documents will not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.

C1.16 INTENTION OF THE TOWN

It is the intent of the Town to describe in the ITB the Work to be completed in accordance with all codes and regulations governing all the Work to be performed under this Contract. Any work, labor, materials and/or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract as being required to produce the intended results must be supplied by Contractor whether or not specifically called for in the Contract Documents. Where words, which have well-known technical or trade meanings are used to describe Work, materials or equipment, such words will be interpreted in accordance with that meaning. Reference to standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to the laws or regulations of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, will mean the latest standard specification, manual, code or laws or regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids and Contractor must comply therewith. Town will have no duties other than those duties and obligations expressly set forth within the Contract Documents.

C1.17 PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS

If there is a conflict or inconsistency between any term, statement requirement, or provision of any exhibit attached hereto, any document or events referred to herein, or any document incorporated into the Contract Documents by reference and a term, statement, requirement, the specifications or any plans, or provision of the Contract Documents the following order of precedence will apply:

- 1. In the event of conflicts in the Contract Documents the priorities stated below will govern;
- 2. Revisions and Change Orders to the Contract will govern over the Contract;
- 3. The Contract Documents will govern over the Contract;
- 4. The Special Conditions will govern over the General Conditions of the Contract; and
- 5. Addendum to an ITB will govern over the ITB.

In the event that Drawings and specifications are provided with the Contract the priorities stated below will govern:

- 1. Scope of Work and Specifications will govern over Plans and Drawings;
- 2. Schedules, when identified as such will govern over all other portions of the Plans;
- 3. Specific notes will govern over all other notes, and all other portions of the Plans, unless specifically stated otherwise;
- 4. Larger scale drawings will govern over smaller scale drawings;
- 5. Figured or numerical dimensions will govern over dimensions obtained by scaling; and
- 6. Where provisions of codes, manufacturer's specifications or industry standards are in conflict, the more restrictive, strict, or higher quality will govern.

C1.18 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS

All fees, royalties, and claims for any invention, or pretended inventions, or patent of any article, material, arrangement, appliance, or method that may be used upon or in any manner be connected with the Work or appurtenances, are hereby included in the prices stipulated in the Contract for said Work.

C1.19 PURCHASE AND DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND INSTALLATION

All materials must be F.O.B. delivered and included in the cost of the Work. The Contractor is solely responsible for the purchase, delivery, off-loading and installation of all equipment and material(s). Contractor must make all arrangement for delivery. Contractor is liable for replacing and damaged equipment or material(s) and filing any and all claims with suppliers. All transportation must comply with all federal, FDOT, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules and regulations.

No materials will be stored on site without the prior written approval, using the appropriate Town form, by the Project Manager. The Town's Forms are available on the Town's website.

C1.20 VEHICLES & EQUIPMENT

Contractor must have on hand at all times clean and in good working order such vehicles, machinery, tools, accessories, and other items necessary to perform the Work under this Contract. The Town may require the repair or replacement of equipment as reasonably necessary.

C1.21 OWNERSHIP OF THE WORK

The Contractor is solely responsible for all Work, until Final Completion of the Work. Contractor is liable for all damage, theft, maintenance, and safety until such time as the Town issues a notice of Final Completion of the Work.

C1.22 TOWN LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES

In accordance with the Public Bid Disclosure Act, 218.80, Florida Statutes, each license, permit, or fee the Contractor will have to pay the Town before or during the Work or the percentage method or unit method of all licenses, permits and fees required by the Town and payable to the Town by virtue of the Work as part of the Contract are as follows:

- Contractor must have and maintain during the term of this Contract all appropriate Town licenses. Fees for which must be paid in full in accordance with the Town's Fee structure for such licenses. THERE WILL NOT BE ANY PERCENTAGE REDUCTION OR WAIVING OF TOWN LICENSE FEES.
- 2. During the performance of this Contract there may be times when the Contractor will be required to obtain a Town permit for such Work. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that he has the appropriate Town permits to perform such work as may become

necessary during the performance of the Work. Any fees related to Town required permits in connection with this Contract will be the responsibility of the Contractor and will be reimbursed by the Town.

Licenses, permits, and fees that may be required by County, State or Federal entities are not included in the above list.

C1.23 TAXES

Contractor must pay all applicable sales, consumer, use, and other taxes required by law. Contractor is responsible for reviewing the pertinent state statutes involving state taxes and complying with all requirements.

Contractor shall include all sales and other taxes for which it is liable in its Bid price.

C1.24 REMOVAL OF UNSATISFACTORY PERSONNEL

Contractor must at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its employees and subcontractors at the Project(s) site(s) and must not employ on any Work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in the Work to which they are assigned.

The Town may make written request to the Contractor for the prompt removal and replacement of any personnel employed or retained by the Contractor, or any or Subcontractor engaged by the Contractor to provide and perform services or Work pursuant to the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor must respond to the Town within five (5) calendar days of receipt of such request with either the removal and replacement of such personnel or written justification as to why that may not occur. The Town will make the final determination as to the removal of unsatisfactory personnel from the Work. The Contractor agrees that the removal of any of such individual(s) does not require the termination or demotion of said individual(s).

C1.25 DEFECTIVE OR NON-COMPLIANT WORK

The Project Manager has the authority to reject or disapprove Work that is found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of the Contract. If required, the Contractor will promptly either correct all defective or non-compliant Work or remove such defective Work and replace it with non-defective/non-compliant Work. Contractor will bear all direct, indirect, and consequential costs of such removal or corrections.

Re-examination of any of the Work may be ordered by the Project Manager and if so ordered, the Work must be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is found to be in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Town will pay the cost of reexamination and replacement by means of a Change Order. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor will pay such cost.

Should Contractor fail or refuse to remove or correct any defective or non-compliant Work or to make any necessary repairs in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents within the time indicated in writing by the Project Manager, the Project Manager has the authority to cause the defective/non-compliant Work to be removed or corrected or make such repairs or corrections as may be necessary at Contractor's expense. Any expense incurred by the Town in making such removals, corrections, or repairs, will be paid for out of any monies due or which may become due the Contractor. In the event of failure of the Contractor to make all necessary repairs promptly and fully, the Town Manager or designee may declare the Contractor in default.

If, within the warranty period required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract, any of the Work is found to be defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor, after receipt of written notice from Town, must promptly correct such defective or nonconforming Work within the time specified by Town, without cost to Town. Should the Contractor fail to take such action the Town may take any necessary and appropriate action and hold the Contractor liable and responsible for all costs. The Town may take any action allowed under this Contract or in law to recover all such costs. Nothing contained herein will be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to any other obligation which Contractor might have under the Contract Documents, including but not limited to, any claim regarding latent defects.

Failure to reject any defective Work or material does not, in any way, prevent later rejection when such defect is discovered, or obligate the Town to accept the defective Work.

C1.26 COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Contractor must comply with the most recent editions and requirements of all applicable laws, rule, regulations, codes, and ordinances of the Federal government, the State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and the Town.

C1.27 NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY, & ADA

Contractor will not unlawfully discriminate against any person, will provide equal opportunities for employment, and comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act in its performance of the Work under the Contact. Contractor will comply with all applicable federal, State of Florida, Miami-Dade County, and Town rules regulations, laws, and ordinance as applicable.

C1.28 NOTICES

Whenever either party desires to give written notice to the other relating to the Contract, such must be addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place specified below; and the place for giving the notice will remain until it has been changed by written notice in compliance with the provisions of this Article. Notice will be deemed given on the date received or within 3 days of mailing, if mailed through the United States Postal Service. Notice will be deemed given on the date sent via e-mail or facsimile. Notice will be deemed given via courier/delivery service upon the initial delivery date by the courier/delivery service. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving of notice:

For Town:

Mr. Edward Pidermann
Town Manager
Town of Miami Lakes
6601 Main Street
Miami Lakes, Florida 33014
pidermanne@miamilakes-fl.gov

For Contractor:

Daniel DiMura
President
Shenandoah General Construction LLC
1888 NW 22nd Street
Pompano Beach, FL 33069
m.lary@shenandoahus.com

Lorenzo Cobiella
Deputy Town Attorney
Town of Miami Lakes
6601 Main Street
Miami Lakes, Florida 33014
cobiellal@miamilakes-fl.gov

Space intentionally left blank

During the Work, the Contractor must maintain continuing communications with designated Town representative(s). The Contractor must keep the Town fully informed as to the progress of the Work under the Contract.

C2 INDEMNITY & INSURANCE

C2.01 INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor must indemnify and hold harmless the Town, its officers, agents and employees from and against all liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and costs at both trial and appellate levels arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Work under this Contract, caused by negligence, recklessness, intentional misconduct, or any act or omission of the Contractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor may be liable. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by this Contract or otherwise provided by Contractor will in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Town or its officers, employees, agents, and instrumentalities as herein provided.

The Contractor agrees and recognizes that the Town will not be held liable or responsible for any claims which may result from any actions or omissions of the Contractor in which the Town participated either through review or concurrence of the Contractor's actions. In reviewing, approving, or rejecting any submissions by the Contractor or other acts of the Contractor, the Town in no way assumes or shares any responsibility or liability of the Contractor or Subcontractor, under this Contract. The Contractor will defend the Town or provide for such defense at its own expense, at the Town's option.

This indemnification obligation will survive the expiration or termination of this Contract.

The Town has provided specific consideration for the indemnification of \$10.00 from the sums due to the Contractor under this Contract.

C2.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGES TO THE WORK

Contractor accepts full responsibility for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town Manager or designee, and must promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

Contractor is full responsible for Work against all losses or damages of whatever nature sustained until acceptance by Town, and must promptly repair or replace, at no additional cost to the Town any Work, materials, equipment, or supplies damaged, lost, stolen, or destroyed from any cause whatsoever.

C2.03 DEFENSE OF CLAIMS

Should any claim be made, or any legal action brought in any way relating to the Work under the Contract, the Contractor will diligently render to the Town all assistance which the Town may require of the Contractor.

C2.04 INSURANCE

Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of Contractor, the Contractor must secure and maintain throughout the duration of this Contract, insurance of such type and in such amounts necessary to protect its interest and the interest of the Town against hazards or risks of loss as specified below. The underwriter of such insurance must be qualified to do business in the

State of Florida, be rated "B" as to management and "Class V" as to strength or better as rated by the latest edition of Best's Insurance Guide, published by A.M. Best Company, Oldwick, New Jersey, or its equivalent, the insurance carrier must have agents upon whom service of process may be made in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage will be primary insurance with respect to the Town, its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance maintained by the Town will be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and will not contribute to the Contractor's insurance. The insurance coverages must include a minimum of:

a. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance:

Coverage to apply for all employees for statutory limits as required by the State of Florida's Statutory Workers' Compensation Law and all applicable Federal laws. The policy(ies) must include Employer's Liability with minimum limits of \$500,000 each accident and a waiver of subrogation.

b. Comprehensive Business Automobile and Vehicle Liability Insurance:

This insurance must be written in comprehensive form and must protect the Contractor and the Town against claims for injuries to members of the public and/or damages to property of others arising from the Contractor's use of motor vehicles or any other equipment and must cover operation with respect to onsite and offsite operations and insurance coverage must extend to any motor vehicles or other equipment irrespective of whether the same is owned, non-owned, or hired. The limit of liability must not be less than \$500,000 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Business Automobile Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsement, as filed by the Insurance Services Office.

c. Commercial General Liability ("CGL"):

This insurance must be written in comprehensive form and must protect the Contractor and the Town against claims arising from injuries to members of the public or damage to property of others arising out of any act or omission to act of the Contractor or any of its agents, employees, or subcontractors. The limit of liability must not be less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a primary and non-contributory basis and with a coverage form no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Commercial General Liability Policy, without restrictive endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include: (1) Premises and/or Operations; (2) Independent contractors and Products and/or completed Operations; (3) Broad Form Property Damage, Personal Injury and a Contractual Liability Endorsement, including any hold harmless and/or indemnification agreement.

- (1st) Products and/or Completed Operations for contracts with an Aggregate Limit of **One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000)** per project. Contractor must maintain in force until at least three years after completion of all Work required under the Contract, coverage for Products and Completed Operations, including Broad Form Property Damage.
- (2nd) Personal and Advertising Injury with an aggregate limit of **One Million Dollars** (\$1,000,000).
- (3rd) CGL Required Endorsements:
 - a) Employees included as insured

- b) Contingent Liability/Independent Contractors Coverage
- c) Contractual Liability
- d) Waiver of Subrogation
- e) Premises and/or Operations
- f) Explosion, Collapse and Underground Hazards (if not specifically covered under the policy)
- g) Loading and Unloading
- h) Mobile Equipment (Contractor's Equipment) whether owned, leased, borrowed, or rented by Contractor or employees of the Contractor.

d. Certificate of Insurance

Contractor must provide the Town Manager or designee with Certificates of Insurance for all required policies within fifteen (15) days of notification of a conditional award by the Town. The Certificates of Insurance must not only name the types of policy(ies) provided, but also must specifically cite this Contract and must state that such insurance is as required by this Contract. The Town reserves the right to require the Contractor to provide a certified copy of such policies, upon written request by the Town. Each policy certificate must be endorsed with a provision that not less than thirty (30) calendar days' written notice must be provided to the Town before any policy or coverage is cancelled, restricted, or a material change is made. Acceptance of the Certificate(s) is subject to approval of the Town Manager or designee.

e. Additional Insured

The Town is to be specifically included as an Additional Insured for the liability of the Town resulting from operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor in performance of this Contract. The Town must be named as additional insured under the CGL, business automobile insurance and umbrella policies. Town must be named as an additional insured under Contractor's insurance, including that applicable to the Town as an Additional Insured, must apply on a primary basis and any other insurance maintained by the Town will be in excess of and will not contribute to Contractor's insurance. Contractor's insurance must contain a severability of interest provision providing that, except with respect to the total limits of liability, the insurance must apply to each Insured or Additional Insured in the same manner as if separate policies had been issued to each.

All deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and be approved by the Town Manager. The Contractor will be responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-insured retention in the event of any claim.

C3 PUBLIC RECORDS

C3.01 ACCESS, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF RECORDS

Town will have the right to inspect and copy, at Town's expense, the books, records, and accounts of Contractor which relate in any way to the Contract. The Contractor agrees to maintain an accounting system that provides for accounting records that are supported with adequate documentation and adequate procedures for determining allowable costs.

f. Public Records

Bidder affirms, by virtue of bidding, that its Bid is a public record, and the public will have access to all documents and information pertaining to the bid and the solicitation, subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Bidder acknowledges that the Town may provide public access to or provide copies of all documents subject to disclosure under applicable law. If

the Project is funded by grants, either partially or fully, records will be made available to the granting agency in accordance with that agency's requirements, when necessary.

Bidder is responsible for claiming applicable exemptions to disclosure as provided by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, in its Bid by identifying the materials to be protected and providing a reason for why such exclusion from public disclosure is necessary and legal.

g. Retention and Transfer of Public Records

Upon termination by the Town or final completion of the Contract the Contractor must, in accordance with Section 119.0701 of the Florida Statutes, transfer to the Town, at no cost, all public records in possession of the Contractor and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All public record stored electronically must be provided in .pdf format or another format acceptable to the Town. Any payments due the Contractor will not be made until the Town receives the public records. Failure to return such documents will result in the documents being subject Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes

The Contractor must comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes and Town will have the right to immediately terminate this Contract for the refusal by the Contractor to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor must retain all other records associated with this Contract for a period of five (5) years from the date of termination.

Should the Contractor have any questions related to the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the Contractor's duty to provide public records relating to this Contract, contact the Town's custodian of public records at the Office of the Town Clerk 6601 Main Street, Miami Lakes, Florida 33014 either in writing to by telephone at (305) 364-6100 or clerk@miamilakes-fl.gov.

C4 CONTRACT MODIFICATION AND DISPUTE PROCESS

C4.01 CHANGE ORDERS

Without invalidating the Contract Documents, and without notice to any Surety, the Town reserves the right to make increases, decreases or other changes in the character or quantity of the Work under the Contract Documents as may be considered necessary or desirable to complete the Work in a manner satisfactory to the Town. The Town reserves the right to order changes which may result in additions to or reductions from the amount, type or value of the Work shown in the Contract, and which are within the general scope of the Contract Documents, and all such changes will be authorized only by a Change Order approved in advance and issued in accordance with provisions of the Town.

The Contractor is required to provide the Project Manager with a detailed Change Proposal Request ("CPR") or Request for Change Order ("RCO"), utilizing the Town's standard form, which must include requested revisions to the Contract, including but not limited to adjustments in this Contract Price and Contract Time. The Contractor is required to provide sufficient data in support of the cost proposal demonstrating its reasonableness. In furtherance of this obligation, the Town may require that the Contractor submit any or all of the following: a cost breakdown of material costs, labor costs, labor rates by trade, and Work classification and overhead rates in support of Contractor's CPR/RCO. The Contractor's CPR/RCO must include any schedule revisions and an explanation of the cost and schedule impact of the proposed change on the Project. If the Contractor fails to notify the Project Manager of any schedule changes associated with the

proposed change, it will be deemed to be an acknowledgment by Contractor that the proposed work will not have any scheduling consequences.

Any changes to the Contract must be contained in a written Change order, using the Town's Change Order Form, executed by both parties. However, under circumstances determined necessary by the Town, a Change Order may be issued unilaterally by Town.

In the event a satisfactory adjustment cannot be reached, and a Change Order has not been issued or time is of the essence, the Town reserves the right, at its sole option to direct the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis or make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the proposed additional Work.

Where the Town directs the Contractor to proceed on a time and materials basis, Contractor must maintain detailed records of all labor and material costs for review by the Town.

For all Change Orders the Contractor will be entitled to a combined profit and overhead rate for Change Orders that will not be in excess of ten (10%) percent inclusive of all direct/indirect costs including labor, material, and equipment costs, unless the Procurement Manager determines that the complexity and risk of the Change Order work is such that an additional factor is appropriate.

The final amount to be paid to the Contractor for Change Order Work is subject to negotiation between the Town and the Contractor.

Failure by the Contractor to proceed with Change Order Work when so directed by the Town Manager or designee may result in the Contractor being found in default of the Contract.

Contractor must utilize the Town's standard requests for change orders and change order forms unless otherwise specifically approved by the Town's Procurement Manager. The Town's Forms are available on the Town's website.

C4.02 FORCE MAJEURE

Should any failure to perform on the part of Contractor be due to a condition of Force Majeure as that term is interpreted under Florida law, then, the Town may allow an extension of time reasonably commensurate with the cause of such failure to perform or cure.

If the Contractor is delayed in performing any obligation under the Contract Documents due to a force majeure condition, the Contractor must request a time extension from the Town within two (2) working days of said Force Majeure occurrence. Any time extension will be subject to mutual agreement and will not be cause for any claim by the Contractor for extra compensation unless additional services are required by the Town. A Force Majeure event **does not include** inclement weather except for significant weather events that adversely impact the critical path of the Project Schedule, if required, or completion of the work, and **does not include** the acts or omissions of Subcontractors or suppliers.

C4.03 EXTENSION OF TIME

Any reference in this Article to the Contractor will be deemed to include suppliers, and permitted Subcontractors, whether or not in privity of contract with the Contractor for the purpose of this Article.

If the Contractor is delayed at any time during the progress of the Work beyond the time frame or date provided for Final Completion by the neglect or failure of the Town or by a Force Majeure, then the Contract Time set forth in the Contract will be extended by the Town subject to the following conditions:

1. The cause of the delay arises after issuance of the NTP and could not have been anticipated by the Contractor by reasonable investigation before proceeding with the Work;

- 2. The Contractor demonstrates that the completion of the Work will be actually and necessarily delayed;
- 3. The effect of such cause cannot be avoided or mitigated by the exercise of all reasonable precautions, efforts, and measures whether before or after the occurrence of the cause of delay.

A delay meeting all the conditions of the above, will be deemed an Excusable Delay.

The Town reserves the right to rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if subsequently, the Project Manager determines that any information provided by the Contractor in support of a request for an extension of time was erroneous; provided however, that such information or facts, if known, would have resulted in a denial of the request for an Excusable Delay. Notwithstanding the above, the Project Manager will not rescind or shorten any extension previously granted if the Contractor acted in reliance upon the granting of such extension and such extension was based on information which, although later found to have been erroneous, was submitted in good faith by the Contractor.

The request for an Excusable Delay must be made within five (5) calendar days after the time when the Contractor knows or should have known of any cause for a specific event, for which it may claim an extension of time and must provide any actual or potential basis for an extension of time, identifying such causes and describing, as fully as practicable at that time, the nature and expected duration of the delay and its effect on the completion of that part of the Work identified in the request. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to furnish such additional information or documentation, as the Project Manager will reasonably deem necessary or helpful in considering the requested extension.

The Contractor will not be entitled to an extension of time unless the Contractor affirmatively demonstrates that it is entitled to such extension.

The Project Manager will endeavor to review and respond to the Contractor's request for Excusable Delays in a reasonable period of time; however, the Contractor is obligated to continue to perform the Work required regardless of whether the Project Manager has issued a decision or whether the Contractor agrees or disagrees with that decision.

With regard to an injunction, strike or interference of public origin which may delay the Project, the Contractor must promptly give the Project Manager a copy of the injunction or other orders and copies of the papers upon which the same was granted. The Town must be afforded the right to intervene and become a party to any suit or proceeding in which any such injunction has been obtained and move to dissolve the same or otherwise, as the Town may deem proper.

Where the Contractor is delayed for any period of time by two or more of the causes mentioned in Article C4.04, Excusable Delay, Non-Compensable, the Contractor will not be entitled to a separate extension for each one of the causes, only one period of extension will be granted for the delay.

Any extension of time granted by the Town will be processed through the Change Order provisions of the Contract.

The permitting of the Contractor to proceed with the Work subsequent to the date specified in the Contract (as such date may have been extended by a change order), the making of any payment to the Contractor, the issuance of any Change Order, will not waive the Town's rights under the Contract, including but not limited to the assessment of liquidated damages or declaring Contractor in default.

C4.04 EXCUSABLE DELAY, NON-COMPENSABLE

Excusable Delay is delay caused by either of the following: (i) circumstances that could not be foreseen and are beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, its subcontractors, or suppliers; or (ii) joint or concurrent action by Contractor, its subcontractors, suppliers or vendors and the Town. Then Contractor will be entitled only to a time extension and no compensation for the delay.

Contractor is entitled to a time extension of the Contract time for each day the Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. Contractor must document its claim for any time extension as provided in Article C4.05.

Failure of Contractor to comply with Article C4.05, as to any particular event of delay will be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver, abandonment or relinquishment of any and all claims resulting from that particular event of delay.

C4.05 CLAIMS

Contractor will only be entitled to submit a claim after submitting its request for additional compensation or time in accordance with Articles C4.03 and C4.04 of the Contract and the request(s) have been denied or the Contractor does not agree with the decision of the Town.

Any claim for a change in the Contract time for completion of any Work, the Contract Term, or Contract price must be made by written notice by Contractor to the Town representatives identified in Article C1.26 within the timeframe established in Article C4.04, effective with the commencement of the event giving rise to the claim stating the general nature and cause of the claim. Thereafter, within twenty (20) calendar days of the termination of the event giving rise to the claim, written notice of the extent of the claim with supporting information and documentation must be provided unless the Procurement Manager allows an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data in support of the claim. The written notice must be accompanied by Contractor's written notarized statement that the adjustment(s) claimed is the entire adjustment to which the Contractor has reason to believe it is entitled as a result of the occurrence of said event. All claims and disputes will be determined in accordance with the Contract. It is expressly and specifically agreed that any and all claims for changes to the Contract will be waived if not submitted in strict accordance with the requirements of this Article.

The Town may require the Contract to submit its claim utilizing a specific format or forms to facilitate the Town's evaluation of the claim. The Town at its sole discretion may require that additional documentation or information be provided by the Contractor to assist in its review and evaluation of the claim.

The Contract time will be extended in an amount equal to time lost on critical Work items due to delays beyond the control of and through no fault or negligence of Contractor if a claim is made as provided in this Article. Such delays include, but are not limited to, acts or neglect by any separate contractor employed by Town, fires, floods, labor disputes beyond the control of the Contractor, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions (if applicable), or acts of God.

The Contractor will not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment or compensation of any kind from the Town for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference or hindrance from any cause whatsoever, whether such delay, disruption, interference or hindrance be it reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or unforeseeable, avoidable or unavoidable. Contractor will only be entitled to an extension of the Contract Time for completion of the Work, as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting excusable delay.

The Contractor agrees to make no claim for damages for delay of any kind in the performance of the Contract Documents whether occasioned by any act or omission of the Town or any of its representatives and the Contractor agrees that any such claim will be compensated solely by an extension of time to complete performance of the Work due to an Excusable Delay as defined in Articles C4.03, and Article C4.04. The Contractor alone specifically assumes the risk of such delays, including, without limitation: delays in processing or approving any submittals to the Town or by the Town, or the failure to render determinations, approvals, replies, inspections, in a timely manner. Contractor will not receive monetary compensation for Town delay(s).

Failure of Contractor to comply with this Article as to any particular event of claim will be deemed conclusively to constitute a waiver of any and all claims resulting from that particular event.

C4.06 CONTINUING THE WORK

Contractor must continue to perform all Work under the Contract Documents during all disputes or disagreements with Town, including disputes or disagreements concerning a request for a Change Order and no Work must not be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements.

C4.07 FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

The Town may terminate this Contract or any other contracts with the Town with any person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate that attempts to meet its contractual obligations with the Town through fraud, misrepresentation, or material misstatement. Such person, individual, corporation, entity, or affiliate will be responsible for all direct or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation.

C4.08 STOP WORK ORDER

The Town may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to stop all, or any part, of the Work for a period of up to ninety (90) days (or any lesser period), commencing no sooner than the date the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree. Any such order will be specifically identified as a "Stop Work Order" issued pursuant to this paragraph. Within the period of ninety (90) days (or the lesser period specified) after a Stop Work Order is delivered to the Contractor, or within any extension to which the parties have agreed the Town will either:

- 1. Cancel the Stop Work Order; or
- Terminate the Work covered by such order as provided in Article C5.03, Termination for Convenience.

If a Stop Work Order issued under this Article is canceled or the period of the order or any extension thereof expires, the Contractor must resume the Work without compensation to the Contractor for such suspension other than extending the time to complete any Work under the Contract or extending the Contract Term to the extent that, in the opinion of the Project Manager, the Contractor may have been delayed by such suspension. In the event the Project Manager determines that the suspension of Work was necessary due to Contractor's defective or incorrect Work, unsafe Work conditions caused by the Contractor, or any other reason caused by Contractor's fault or omission, the Contractor will not be entitled to an extension of time or Contract Term or (Time) as a result of the issuance of a Stop Work Order.

Suspension of the Work caused by a threatened or actual storm event, regardless of whether the Town has directed such suspension, will entitle the Contractor to additional Contract time as non-compensable, Excusable Delay, and will not give rise to a claim for compensable delay.

C4.09 MATERIALITY AND WAIVER OF BREACH

Town and Contractor agree that each requirement, duty, and obligation set forth in the Contract Documents is substantial and important to the formation of the Contract Documents and, therefore, is a material term hereof. The Town's failure to enforce any provision of the Contract Documents will not be deemed a waiver of such provision or modification of the Contract Documents. A waiver of any breach of a provision of the Contract Documents will not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach and will not be construed to be a modification of the terms of the Contract Documents.

C4.10 TIME IN WHICH TO BRING ACTION AGAINST THE TOWN

In the event the Contractor may be deemed to have a cause of action against the Town, no action will lie or be maintained by the Contractor against the Town upon any claim arising out of or based upon the Contract Documents by reason of any act or omission or requirement of the Town or its agents, unless such action is commenced within six (6) months after the date of issuance of a final payment under the Contract, or if the Contract is terminated under the provisions of the Contract, unless such action is commenced within six (6) months after the date of such termination by the Town.

C4.11 CONTRACT EXTENSION

The Town reserves the right to extend the Contract for up to ninety (90) calendar days beyond the original Contract period, inclusive of any Options to Renew exercised by the Town. In such event, the Town will notify the Contractor in writing of such extensions.

C5 EARLY TERMINATION & DEFAULT

C5.01 SET-OFFS, WITHOLDING, AND DEDUCTIONS

The Town may set-off, deduct or withhold from any payment due the Contractor, such sums as may be specifically allowed in the Contract or by applicable law including, without limitation, the following:

- 1. Any amount of any claim by a third party;
- 2. Any Liquidated Damages, and/or;
- 3. Any unpaid legally enforceable debt owed by the Contractor to the Town.

The Town will notify the Contractor in writing of any such withholdings.

Any withholding, which is ultimately held to have been wrongful, will be paid to the Contractor in accordance with the Local Government Prompt Payment Act

C5.02 CONTRACTOR DEFAULT

An event of default means a breach of the Contract by the Contractor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in addition to those instances referred to herein as a breach, an Event of Default, includes but is not limited to, the following:

- 1. The Contractor has not performed the Work in a timely manner;
- 2. The Contractor has refused or failed to supply properly skilled staff or provided sufficient quantities of staff to perform the Work;
- 3. The Contractor has failed to make prompt payment to Subcontractors or suppliers for any services, materials, or supplies provided to Contractor;
- 4. The Contractor has become insolvent or has assigned the proceeds received for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors, or the Contractor has taken advantage of any insolvency statute or debtor/creditor law or if the Contractor's affairs have been put in the hands of a receiver;
- 5. The Contractor has failed to obtain the approval of the Town where required by the Contract Documents;

- 6. The Contractor has failed in the representation of any warranties stated herein;
- 7. When, in the opinion of the Town, reasonable grounds for uncertainty exist with respect to the Contractor's ability to perform the Work.

h. Notice of Default – Opportunity to Cure

Where an Event of Default ("Default") occurs under the Contract, the Town may at its sole discretion notify the Contractor, specifying the basis for such Default, and advising the Contractor that such Default must be cured within a time frame specified by the Town; or, the Contract with the Town may be terminated. The Town is under no obligation to issue such notification. The Town may grant an extension to the cure period if the Town deems it appropriate and in the best interest of the Town, without waiver of any of the Town's rights hereunder. The Town, at its sole discretion, may have a default corrected by its own forces or another contractor and any such costs incurred will be deducted from any sums due the Contractor under any contract with the Town.

The Town Manager or designee may also suspend any payment or part thereof or order a Work stoppage until such time as the issue(s) concerning compliance are resolved.

i. Termination for Default

Where a Default is not cured within the time specified to cure the Default, the Town Manager in addition to all remedies available by law, may immediately, upon written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract. Contractor understands and agrees that termination of this Contract under this Article will not release Contractor from any obligation accruing prior to the effective date of termination.

In the event of termination by the Town Manager or designee, the Town Manager or designee may immediately take possession of all applicable documentation and data, material, equipment, and supplies to which it is entitled to under the Contract or by law.

Where the Town erroneously terminates the Contract for default, the terminations will be converted to a Termination for Convenience, and the Contractor will have no further recourse of any nature for wrongful termination.

C5.03 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

In addition to cancellation or termination as otherwise provided for in the Contract, the Town may at any time, in its sole discretion, with or without cause, terminate the Contract by written notice to the Contractor. Such Written Notice will state the date upon which Contractor must cease all Work under the Contract, and if applicable vacate the Project(s) site(s).

Upon receipt of such notice, unless otherwise directed by the Town, the Contractor must Stop all Work on the date specified in the notice ("the Effective Date");

- 1. Take such action as may be necessary for the protection and preservation of the Town's materials and property;
- 2. Cancel all cancelable orders for materials and equipment;
- 3. Remove all materials, supplies or equipment that may be used by the Contractor on other work;
- 4. Assign to the Town and deliver to the Town, at a site(s) specified by the Town, any non-cancelable orders for materials and equipment that can not otherwise be used by the Contactor on other work;
- 5. Take no action that will increase the amounts payable by the Town under the Contract Documents; and take reasonable measures to mitigate the Town's liability under the Contract Documents; and

6. All documents, including electronic documents, related to Work authorized under the Contract, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Town. Failure to timely deliver the documentation will be cause to withhold any payments due without recourse by Contractor until all documentation is delivered to the Town.

In the event that the Town exercises its right to terminate the Contract pursuant to the Contract Documents, the Town will pay the Contractor for the actual cost, or the fair and reasonable value, as substantiated by invoice documentation, of any non-cancelable material(s) and equipment that cannot be used elsewhere by the Contractor in the performance of its work.

In no event, will any payments under this Paragraph exceed the maximum cost set forth in the Contract and the amount due hereunder may be offset by payments made to the Contractor or any claims made against the Contractor. Contractor will not be entitled to lost profits, overhead or consequential damages as a result of a Termination for Convenience.

C5.04 REMEDIES AVAILABLE TO THE TOWN

The Town may avail itself of each and every remedy stated in the Contract Documents or existing at law or in equity. The exercise or the beginning of the exercise, of one remedy will not be deemed a waiver of the right to exercise, at the same time or thereafter, of any other remedy.

C5.05 FUNDS AVAILABILITY

Funding for this Contract is contingent on the availability of funds and the Contract is subject to amendment or termination due to lack of funds, reduction of funds and/or change in regulations, upon thirty (30) days' notice.

C6 PAYMENT PROCESS

C6.01 COMPENSATION

Contractor can submit an invoice for payment for Work performed once per month for work completed and acceptance by the Project Manager. Contractor may not invoice more than once per month.

Contractor must use the Town's Contractor Payment Application ("Invoice") for all payment requests. Failure to use the Invoice form and full complete the required information will delay payment. Payments will not be made based on statements of accounts.

The Invoice Form is available on the Town's website at http://www.miamilakes-fl.gov/index.php?option=com content&view=article&id=149&itemid=358.

The Town will take action to pay, reject or make partial payment on an Invoice in accordance with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act. No payments will be due or payable for Work not performed or materials not furnished or where the Work has not been accepted by the Town. If there is a dispute with regard to an invoice, the Town will pay the amount not in dispute and reject the remainder that is in dispute. Contractor is responsible for paying its Subcontractors and suppliers in accordance with the Florida Local Government Prompt Payment Act.

The Contractor will be compensated based on actual Work performed at the prices specified in the Contract.

The acceptance of final payment for a Project constitutes a waiver of all claims by Contractor related to that Project, except those previously made in strict accordance with the provisions of the Contract and identified by Contractor as unsettled at the time of the application for payment.

C6.02 ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

The stated quantities do not reflect the actual quantities to be ordered and the Town has not established any minimum quantities and no guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total

quantity of Work to be issued to a Contractor. The Town reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to make adjustment to the number and/or location of the Bid items. The failure of the Town to order any minimum quantities does not form any basis for a claim by the Contractor for lost work or profits.

C6.03 LINE-ITEM PRICING

Line-item pricing must include all costs, both direct and indirect to perform the Work except for those costs specifically identified as reimbursable costs as stated in Article B9.06. This includes any incidental costs associated with the Work not specifically stated, i.e., the installation of drainage may require backfill and patching, whether permanent or temporary.

The Bid Form contains line-item prices, and the Bidder is required to Bid on all line items. Where a Bidder fails to provide line-item prices for all line items the Bid will be rejected as non-responsive.

C6.04 LINE-ITEM QUANTITIES

The estimated quantities will be used solely for bid comparison purposes for the to determine the lowest responsive and responsible. No guarantee is expressed or implied as to the total quantity of Work to be issued to a Contractor.

C6.05 ADDITIONAL LINE-ITEM PRICING

The Town reserves the right to request price quotes for additional items not contained in the initial award. Should the Town add any additional line items the Town will do so through the Change Order process.

C6.06 REIMBURSIBLE EXPENSES

Certain Project expenses may or will not be known at the time of award of a Project. The Town will reimburse the Contractor for such costs, which includes:

- 1 Permits
- 2. Police Officer costs when not provided by the Town
- 3. WASD fees
- 4. DERM fees

Where a permit or the Town requires the Contractor to use a police officer(s) during the performance of the Work the Town will make every effort to furnish police officers at no cost to the Contractor. Where the Town is not able to provide the required police officers the Town will reimburse the Contractor based on the actual cost to the Contractor and the cost is not include in the unit price per item. To be reimbursed the Contractor must submit a copy of documentation substantiating both the cost as well as proof of payment.

Contractor will only be reimbursed for the actual direct cost, without any mark-up.

END OF SECTION

SECTION D. SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

D1 SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work shall consist of, but not be limited to, furnishing all labor, materials, equipment, supervision, transportation, and disposal to provide storm drainage system cleaning services of Townowned catch basins, storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes on an on-call basis throughout the Town. All debris shall be removed from the site and properly disposed of pursuant to Federal, State and Local laws and regulations.

This work shall take place in a variety of pipe sizes from twelve (12) inches up to thirty-six (36) inches, catch basins, manholes, and junction boxes. It should be anticipated that the majority of the work to clean/flush/video pipes will be in short job increments of approximately 30 feet, 50 feet, or 100 feet in length, although there will be pipes with substantially greater lengths. The Contractor shall be responsible to supply any water needed as part of their operations. The Town does not have a municipal water supply; therefore, the Contractor will be required to contact the County or municipal agency to obtain any needed water.

Emergency work shall be all work that is requested outside of normal working hours, paid at the price provided in the bid, and identified by the Project Manager at the time of the work request. The Contractor shall be required to start work within six (6) hours from the time the notice is given by the Town. The Town may not be able to issue a Work Order Form at the time of the emergency. In this case, the Contractor shall proceed per the verbal instructions of the Project Manager, which shall be immediately transmitted to the Contractor via email pending completion by the Project Manager of the Work Order Form. The Project Manager shall supply the Contractor with the Project Order Form at the earliest possible time after the emergency work has taken place.

D2 CATCH BASINS

Contractor shall:

- 1. Remove catch basin grate, clean catch basin by removing all debris, soils, organic matter, and other miscellaneous debris, take a picture of the cleaned catch basin, and replace catch basin grate.
- 2. At the end of each workday, a list of all catch basins cleaned that day shall be submitted to the Project Manager. When all catch basins have been cleaned on the location map, a copy of the map with the date next to each catch basin indicating when it was cleaned shall be submitted to the Project Manager as documentation.
- 3. The marked-up location map shall identify catch basins that cannot be cleaned due to either accessibility or maintenance issues. The Project Manager shall be informed of such locations on the same day and may request that the identified catch basin be cleaned at a later date.
- 4. Document any broken or defective catch basins. Contractor shall notify the Project Manager or designee of any such identified catch basins at the end of the working day, with photos depicting the defect or damage.
- 5. Photographs of cleaned catch basins shall be submitted to the Project Manager or designee electronically once work is completed, or upon request of the Town. Photographs shall be in electronic JPG format in a media approved by the Town. Files shall be labeled with unique identifiers and correspond to the maps or as provided by the Town for other work assigned under this contract.
- 6. All catch basins will be marked with a painted dot on the face of the curb or basin grate after they have been cleaned.

D3 STORM DRAINAGE PIPING, MANHOLESM AND JUNCTION BOXES

Contractor shall:

- 1. All storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes shall be completely flushed of debris and accumulated sediment.
- 2. At the end of each workday, a list of storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes shall be submitted to the Project Manager. When all storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes have been cleaned on a location map, a copy of the map with the date next to each item indicating when it was cleaned shall be updated reflecting progress and submitted to the Project Manager or designee.
- 3. Identify storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes that cannot be cleaned due to accessibility or maintenance issues. Project Manager or designee shall be informed of such locations on the same day and may request that it be cleaned at a later date.
- 4. Document any broken or defective storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes. Contractor shall notify the Project Manager or designee of any such identified storm drainage piping, manholes, and junction boxes at the end of the working day.
- 5. Photographs of cleaned storm drainage manholes and junction boxes shall be submitted to the Project Manager or designee electronically once work is completed, or upon request of the Town. Photographs shall be in electronic JPG format in a media approved by the Town. Files shall be labeled with unique identifiers and correspond to the maps or as provided by the Town for other work assigned under this contract.

D4 CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION (CCTV) INSPECTION

The Town may, from time to time, request the Contractor to perform CCTV only inspections of this infrastructure. Contractor shall provide CCTV inspections at the request of the Town including video footage in an electronic format acceptable to the Town. The Town will provide Contractor with a written request for CCTV inspection services. CCTV inspections shall occur on the next business day, or on a schedule approved by the Project Manager. Contractor shall invoice the Town upon completion of the work requested, once approved by the Project Manager.

D5 DAILY LOG

The Contractor shall complete and submit to the Project Manager or designee on a weekly basis a Daily Log documenting the Contractor's activities at the Project site on the Town's daily log or other forms as may be approved by the Town.

D6 INVOICING

Invoices submitted by the Contractor in accordance with this Contract shall include copies of all disposal manifests and load tickets including applicable waste types and fees.

D7 CONTRACT TERM

This agreement shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue for a term of three (3) years from the date of execution by the Town. The Town retains two (2) options to extend the term of this Agreement for additional one-year terms.

D8 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Town may establish liquidated damages on the Notice to Proceed.

The Contractor is obligated and guarantees to obtain Substantial and Final Completions of the Project within the timeframes established in the Contract or any approved extension of time the Contractor may be granted by the Town. In the event of a delay in completion beyond the date established in the Contract Documents, the Contractor must pay to the Town for each and every calendar day of unexcused delay,

the sum of one hundred fifty dollars (\$150.00), which is hereby agreed upon not as a penalty but as liquidated damages. The Contractor will be notified of any exceptions. The total amount of liquidated damages will not exceed the value of the Contract.

The Town has the right to deduct liquidated damages assessments from any payment due or which may thereafter become due to the Contractor under any contract the Contractor has with the Town. In case the amount available under contracts the Contractor has with the Town is less than the amount of liquidated damages due the Town, the Contractor must pay the difference upon demand by the Town. Should the Contractor fail to compensate the Town for any liquidated damages, the Town will consider this as a form of indebtedness and may deny any future Work under the Contract or any other Town contract until such indebtedness is paid in full to the Town.

The Town will notify the Contractor in writing that it is incurring liquidated damages.

D9 WARRANTY

Contractor warrants to the Town that all materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be new unless otherwise specified and that all of the Work will be of good quality, free from faults and defects and in conformance with the Contract Documents. All Work not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, may be considered defective. If required by the Project Manager, the Contractor must furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. This warranty is not limited by any other provisions within the Contract Documents.

All Work must have a one (1) year warranty on labor from the date of acceptance of the Work by the Town under the Contract. Contractor must provide a minimum written warranty of one (1) year on all equipment, parts, or material unless the manufacturer provides a longer warranty. Where the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or material provides a warranty greater than one (1) year, or other stipulated time frame, then the manufacturer's warranty term will take precedence. Contractor will be required to provide the Project Manager a copy of the manufacturer's warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment. Manufacturer's warranties will become effective upon Final Completion of the Project.

All material and equipment furnished must be fully guaranteed by the Contractor against factory defects and workmanship. At no expense to the Town, the Contractor will correct any and all apparent and latent defects that may occur within the manufacturer's standard warranty. The Contract Documents may supersede the manufacturer's standard warranty. Manufacturer's warranties will become effective upon Final Completion of the Project.

Should the Contractor fail to perform any required warranty work the Town, at its sole discretion, may have the work performed by others, and deduct such costs from any monies due the Contractor from the Town. Where such funds are not available, the Town will bill the Contractor and Contractor will reimburse the Town within thirty (30) calendar days. The Town may take any necessary and appropriate action provided under this Contract or with law to collect such payment due the Town.

END OF SECTION
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

CONTRACT EXECUTION FORM

| This Contract 2021-2456 made this 11th day of M | in the year 202 in an amount not |
|---|---|
| to exceed \$ wageted funds by and between | |
| called the "Town," and Shenandoah General Const | |
| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have e first above written. | executed this Agreement as of the day and year |
| Attest: By: Gina Inguanzo, Town Clerk | By: Edward Pidermann, Town Manager |
| Legal Sufficiency: | |
| By: Town Attorney | Date: 5/11/21 |
| Signed, sealed, and witnessed in the presence of: | CONTRACTOR |
| | Shenandoah General Construction LLC |
| By: 4 | (Contractor's Name) By: Name: Daniel DiMura Title: President |
| | _{Date:} May 12, 2021 |

Section E. (*) In the event that the Contractor is a corporation, there shall be attached the original of the corporate resolution in the form contained in this Section, of the board of the corporation, authorizing the officer who signs the Contract to do so in its behalf.

ATTACHMENT A. BIDDER'S PROPOSAL

See attached

BID FORM

This Bid is submitted on behalf of Shenandoah General (hereinafter "Bidder") located at Construction LLC (Name of Bidder)

| 1888 NW 22 Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33069 | , submitted on _ | April 23, 2021 |
|---|---------------------------|----------------|
| (Address) | | (Date) |
| to furnish all Work as stated in the ITB and Contract Documents | for ITB No 2021-24 | 1for |
| Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services | | |
| (Solicitation Title) | | |
| To: Town of Miami Lakes, Florida | | |
| Attn: Town Clerk | | |
| Government Center X | | |
| 6601 Main Street | | |
| Miami Lakes, Florida 33014 | | |

This Bid Form is submitted as part of the Bidder's Bid submittal ("Submittal") in response to the above stated ITB issued by the Town of Miami Lakes.

Bidder has carefully examined all the documents contained in the ITB and understands all instructions, requirements, specifications, drawings/plans, terms, and conditions, and hereby offers and proposes to furnish the products or services described herein at the prices, fees or rates quoted in the Submittal, and in accordance with the requirements, specifications, drawings/plans, terms and conditions, and any other requirements of the Contract Documents.

Bidder has the necessary experience, knowledge, abilities, skills, and resources to satisfactorily perform the requirements under this ITB and attests to meeting the minimum qualifications stated therein.

All statements, information and representations prepared and submitted in response to the ITB are current, complete, true, and accurate. Bidder acknowledges that the Town will rely on such statements, information, and representations in selecting a Bidder, and hereby grants the Town permission to contact any persons or entities identified in the ITB to independently verify the information provided herein.

No attempt has or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or firm to not submit a response to this ITB and no personnel currently employed by the Town participated, directly or indirectly, in any activities related to the preparation of the Submittal. Bidder has had no contact with Town personnel regarding the ITB. If contact has occurred, except as permitted under the Cone of Silence, so state and include a statement identifying in detail the nature and extent of such contacts and personnel involved.

The pricing, rates or fees proposed by the Bidder have been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restriction of competition, as to any other Bidder or competitor; and unless otherwise required by law, the prices quoted have not been disclosed by the Bidder prior to submission of the Submittal, either directly or indirectly, to any other Bidder or competitor.

Bidder is not currently disqualified, de-listed or debarred from doing business with any public entity, including federal, state, county, or local public entities. If yes, Bidder must provide a detailed explanation of such disqualification, de-listing, or debarment, including the reasons and timeframe.

The Bidder agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to timely execute a contract with the Town, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents and to furnish the documents, equipment, machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation, and all labor necessary to complete the Work.

The individual signing the Bid Form represents by signing, that he/she is duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder and that all information and documents submitted in response to the ITB are to the best of his/her knowledge are true, accurate, and complete as of the submittal date.

BID PRICE

Bidder's **TOTAL BID AMOUNT** includes the total cost for the Work specified in this solicitation, consisting of furnishing all materials, labor, equipment, supervision, mobilization, overhead & profit required, in accordance with the Contract Documents.

| Two Hundred | d & Eightee | en Thousand Nine Hundred & Eighty Dollars and Zero Cents |
|-------------------------|-------------------|--|
| Total Bid A | mount: | \$_218,980.00 |
| Firm's Name: | Shenandoa | ah General Construction LLC |
| SSN or Federal ID N | o.: <u>59-170</u> | 7673 Telephone No.:954-975-0098 |
| M.La E-Mail Address: | ary@shena | andoahus.com Facsimile No.: 954-975-9718 |
| Town/State/Zip: | | 22 Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33069 |
| | | Mura, President Signature: |

Total Bid Amount (written out):

Company Qualification Questionnaire

Some responses may require the inclusion of separate attachments. Separate attachments should be as concise as possible, while including the requested information. In no event should the total page count of all attachments to this Form exceed five (5) pages. Some Information may not be applicable, in such instances insert "N/A".

| 1. | How many years has your company been in business under its current name and ownership? |
|----|--|
| | 45 Years |
| | a. Professional Licenses/Certifications (include name and license #)* Issuance Date |
| | Florida State Underground Utility & Excavation Co. 5/19/03 - Exp 8/31/2022 Staffin Zebarth #CUC1223821 |
| | Florida State Underground Utility & Excavation Co. Anthony Guglielmi #CUC1225783 4/20/21 - Exp 8/31/2022 |
| | (*include copies of each ilcense in a separate attachment to this form) |
| 2. | Type of Company: ☐ Individual ☐ Partnership ☐ Corporation ☒ LLC ☐ Other |
| | If other, please describe the type of company: |
| | a. FEIN/EIN Number: 59-1707673 |
| | b. Dept. of Business Professional Regulation Category (DBPR): Underground Utility & Excavation Contractor |
| | i. Date Licensed by DBPR: 05/19/2003 |
| | ii. License Number: CUC1223821 |
| | c. Date registered to conduct business in the State of Florida: 12/21/1976 |
| | i. Date filed: 12/21/1976 |
| | ii. Document Number: 522783/L19000024056 |
| | d. Primary Office Location: 1888 NW 22 Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33069 |
| | Clean, Video Inspect & Trenchless Rehabilitation e. What is your primary business? Sanitary Sewer & Storm Drainage Systems (This answer should be specific) |
| | f. Name of Qualifier, license number, and relationship to company: |
| | Staffin Zebarth - CUC1223821 - Project Manager |

| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | alifiers during the past fiv ly and years as qualifier f | | | ٠, | ense numbe |
|---------------------------------------|--|--------------|----------|-------------|---------------------------------------|
| None | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| h. Name and Licenses of a | nny prior companies | | | | |
| Name of Company Licens | se Name & No. — Issu | ıance Dat | e | | |
| None | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Company Ownership | | | | | |
| a. Identify all owners or p | artners of the company: | | | | |
| Name | Title | | % of a | ownersh | ip |
| KLH Capital Fund III, LP | Owner | | 77.3 | 38 | |
| Daniel DiMura | President | | 4.2 | 26 | |
| Margaret DiMura | Vice President | | 4.2 | <u>.</u> 6 | |
| b. Is any owner identified | above an owner in anotl | ner comp | any? 🗆 | Yes 🛚 | No |
| If yes, identify the name of th | ne owner, other company r | names, an | d % own | ership. | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| • | authorized to sign for the xes and for other provide specific lev | • | | ating th | e level of t |
| | | Signa | tory Aut | - | |
| Name Title | | All | Cost | No- Cost | Other |
| Daniel DiMura, President | | × | | П | |
| Margaret DiMura, Vice Pres | ident | | | _ | _ |
| Anthony Guglielmi, VP of Op | | XD X | | | |
| Sophie Starfas, VP of Finance | | (X) | | | |

| | Explanation for Other: | |
|----|--|---|
| 4. | Employee Information | |
| | a. Total No. of Employees: | 131 |
| | b. Total No. of Managerial/Admin. Employees: | |
| | c. Number of Trades Personnel and total numb (Apprentices must be listed separately for each classification) | er per classification: |
| | 90 - Vac Operators / TV Operators / Equipme | nt Operators / Laborers |
| | | |
| 5. | Will a Labor Force Company be used to provide any | workers? 🗆 Yes 🛮 🖄 No |
| 6. | Employer Modification Rating: 0.97 | |
| 7. | Insurance Information: | |
| | a. Insurance Carrier name & address: | |
| | Baldwin Krystyn Sherman - 4211 W. Bo | y Scout Blvd., #800, Tampa, FL 33607 |
| | b. Insurance Contact Name, telephone, & e-ma | i: |
| | Nicole Heilmann - (813) 393-5388 - Nicol | le.Heilmann@bks-partners.com |
| | c. Insurance Experience Modification Rating (EN | • |
| | d. Number of Insurance Claims paid out in last 5 | years & value: WC- 28 Claims \$286,223 GL - 0 Claims \$ 0.00 |
| 8. | Have any lawsuits been filed against your company i | n the past 5 years? 🗆 Yes 🛭 No |
| | If yes, in a separate attachment, identify each law lawsuit provide its case number, venue, the year th judgment, its current disposition and, if applicable settlement is covered by a written confidentiality again. | e suit was filed, the basis for the claim or , the settlement unless the value of the |
| 9. | To the best of your knowledge, is your company or an investigation by any law enforcement agency or pub | |

| | the inv | estigation. |
|-----|---------------|---|
| 10. | compa | any employees or Principals (including stockholders with over 10% ownership) of the any been convicted by a Federal, State, County or Municipal Court of or do any employees acipals have any pending violations of law, other than traffic violations? \square Yes \square No |
| | | in a separate attachment, provide an explanation of any convictions or pending actioning the name of the Key Staff member or Principal involved and the nature of the offense |
| 11. | | our company been assessed liquidated damages or defaulted on a project in the past fivences? \square Yes \square No |
| | | in a separate attachment provide an explanation including the name of the project, the stances of default or assessed damages, and the ultimate disposition of the issue. |
| 12. | enter | te Bidder or any of its principals failed to qualify as a responsible Bidder, refused to into a contract after an award has been made, failed to complete a contract during st five (5) years, or been declared to be in default in any contract in the last five (5) years? XI No |
| | | in a separate attachment provide an explanation including the year, the name of the ing agency, and the circumstances leading to default. |
| 13. | | e Bidder or any of its principals ever been declared bankrupt or reorganized under 11 or put into receivership? \Box Yes $oldsymbol{\mathbb{K}}$ No |
| | | in a separate attachment provide the date, court jurisdiction, action taken, and any other ation deemed necessary. |
| 14. | Project a. | t Management & Subcontract Details: Name the Project Manager ("PM") for this Project:Staffin Zebarth |
| | | How many years has the PM been with the Company:19 Years |
| | c. | List all the PM's licenses & certifications: |
| | | CUC1223821 - Florida Underground Utility & Excavation Co. |
| | | |
| | Ч | List the last five (5) projects the PM worked on with the company. In a separate |
| | u. | attachment, include the PM's role, scope of work, & value of each project. |

If yes, in a separate attachment, provide details including the identity of the officer and the nature of

| at will work on this pro | oject: | |
|--------------------------|----------------------|---------------------------------------|
| | | |
| Trade/Work | % of Work | License No. |
| | | |
| | | |
| be Performed by your | company and cor | responding percenta |
| leted by Shenandoa | h General Const | truction LLC |
| | be Performed by your | be Performed by your company and corn |

15. Prior Experience:

a. Prior contracts or projects of a similar size, scope, and complexity:

Provide an attachment to this Questionnaire that includes contracts or projects the Bidder considers of a similar, size, scope, and complexity that the Town should consider in determining the Bidders responsiveness and responsibility. This attachment must include the contracts or projects that meet the minimum number of contracts or projects identified in Section A of the solicitation. Bidders are to include no more than five (5) contracts or projects in total.

Information provided must include the owner's name, address, and contract person, including telephone & e-mail, title of contract or project, location of project, scope, initial value and final cost of the contract or project, projected and final timeframes for completion in calendar days. A verifiable reference letter is to be completed by the owner of the Project

| | and submitted as part of the Bid submission. Bid | ders must use Form CRL for its reference |
|--------------|---|---|
| By signing 6 | letters. Proposer certifies that the information contain | ed herein is true and accurate to the best of |
| Proposer's k | knowledge. | |
| ву: | JW | April 22, 2021 |
| Sign | ature of Authorized Officer | Date |
| Daniel | DiMura, President | |
| | Printed Name | |

FORM CRL - CLIENT REFERENCE LETTER

| To Whom It May Concern, | |
|---|----------------|
| Subject: Reference Letter for Bid No. 2021-24 Name of Bidder: Shenandoah General Cons | truction |
| The above referenced contractor is submitting on a bid solicitation that has been issued by the Town. We require that the Bidder provide written references with their Bid submission and by providing you with this document the Contractor is requesting that you provide the following reference information. We would appreciate you providing the information requested below as well as any other information your feel is pertinent: ITB 14-15-119 Master Contract Sanitary Sewer & Stormwater Rehab & Infrastruction of Project: | cture Repai |
| Name of Project Owner:City of West Palm Beach | |
| Scope of work: Clean, Televise & CIPP Stormwater Infrastructure | |
| Initial Value of Contract: \$\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ | |
| Was the work performed timely: \square Yes \square No | |
| Was the work completed within budget? ☐ Yes ☐ No | |
| If no, did the Contractor contribute to the delay(s) or increased cost? \Box Yes \Box No | |
| Quality of the work performed: | |
| Was the Contractor responsive to the Project Owner? ☐ Yes ☐ No | |
| Were the number of RFIs submitted reasonable for the scope of the project(s)? \Box Yes \Box No | |
| Number of Change Orders: Were any Contractor driven? ☐ Yes ☐ No | |
| Would you enter into a contract with the Contractor again in the future? ☐ Yes ☐ No | |
| If no to any of the above, please provide details below. Provide any other comment you feel appropriate | ! . |
| Thank you for your assistance in helping us in evaluating our bid solicitation. | |
| Name: Laura Le Date: | |
| Title: Public Utilities Engineer Telephone: 561-289-8414 | |
| Signature: E-mail: LLe@wpb.org | |

Margaret Lary

From:

postmaster@wpbit.onmicrosoft.com

To:

Laura Le

Sent:

Friday, April 23, 2021 6:17 AM

Subject:

Delivered: Town of Miami Lakes Reference

Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:

Laura Le (LLe@wpb.org)

Subject: Town of Miami Lakes Reference

FORM CRL - CLIENT REFERENCE LETTER

| Signature: | E-mail: | Britt@n | nydelraybeac | h.com |
|--|--------------|--------------|-----------------|----------------------|
| Title: | Telephone: | 561-2 | 43-7000 ext | 7164 |
| Thank you for your assistance in helping us in evalu Name: | - | | | |
| | | | | |
| If no to any of the above, please provide details bel | low. Provide | any othe | r comment you | feel appropriate. |
| Would you enter into a contract with the Contracto | | | | |
| Number of Change Orders: Were any C | Contractor d | riven? | ☐ Yes ☐ |] No |
| Were the number of RFIs submitted reasonable for | the scope o | f the proj | ect(s)? □ Yes □ | □No |
| Was the Contractor responsive to the Project Owner | er? □ | Yes | □ No | |
| Quality of the work performed: \square Above expe | ctations 🗆 / | Average [| Below expect | ations |
| If no, did the Contractor contribute to the delay(s) of | or increased | cost? □ | Yes 🗆 No | |
| Was the work completed within budget? ☐ Yes ☐ |] No | | | |
| Was the work performed timely: $\ \square$ Yes $\ \square$ No | | | | |
| Final Value of Contract: \$ 1,100,000.00 | | | | |
| Initial Value of Contract: \$ By Work Order | Is the cont | ract still a | ctive? 🗆 Yes 🗶 |] No |
| Scope of work: Clean & Televise Sanitary S | Sewer Sys | tems | | _ |
| Name of Project Owner: City of Delray Beac | | | | |
| Name of Project: Clean & Televise Sanitary | | stems | | |
| providing you with this document the Contractor is reference information. We would appreciate you p well as any other information your feel is pertinent | roviding the | | | - |
| The above referenced contractor is submitting on a Town. We require that the Bidder provide written in | | | | • |
| Subject: Reference Letter for Bid No. 2021-24 | | | | General Construction |
| To Whom It May Concern, | | _ | `honondoob (| Canaral Canatavatia |

Margaret Lary

From:

Britt, Spencer < Britt@mydelraybeach.com>

Sent:

Thursday, April 22, 2021 3:21 PM

To:

Margaret Lary

Subject:

Automatic reply: Town of Miami Lakes Reference

I will be off from the city on 04/22//2021 and will respond to your email when I return on Friday 4/23/2021.

Thank you

Spencer B. Britt

FORM CRL - CLIENT REFERENCE LETTER

| To Whom It May Concern, |
|--|
| Subject: Reference Letter for Bid No. 2021-24 Name of Bidder: Shenandoah General Construction |
| The above referenced contractor is submitting on a bid solicitation that has been issued by the Town. We require that the Bidder provide written references with their Bid submission and by providing you with this document the Contractor is requesting that you provide the following reference information. We would appreciate you providing the information requested below as well as any other information your feel is pertinent: |
| Name of Project:ITB 003-15-DZ - Annual Drainage Infrastructure Inspection |
| Name of Project Owner: Village of Wellington |
| Scope of work: Clean, Televise & CIPP Stormwater Infrastructure |
| Initial Value of Contract: \$\frac{\begin{align*} \text{By Work Order} & \text{Is the contract still active? [Times \text{No.}] \text{Yes \text{No.}} \text{Yes \text{Volume of Contract:} \text{\$\frac{1.805.009.78}{\text{Yes}} & \text{Discrete No.} \text{Volume of Contract:} \text{\$\text{\$\frac{1.805.009.78}{\text{\$\text{Volume of Contract:}} & \$\text{\$ |
| Was the work completed within budget? A Yes □ No |
| If no, did the Contractor contribute to the delay(s) or Increased cost? Yes No |
| Quality of the work performed: Above expectations Average Below expectations |
| Was the Contractor responsive to the Project Owner? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Were the number of RFIs submitted reasonable for the scope of the project(s)? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Number of Change Orders: Were any Contractor driven? □ Yes □ No |
| Would you enter into a contract with the Contractor again in the future? $oldsymbol{\mathcal{A}}$ Yes \Box No |
| If no to any of the above, please provide details below. Provide any other comment you feel appropriate. |
| Thank you for your assistance in helping us in evaluating our bid solicitation. Name: Bill Conerly Date: Title: Dept Directo Public Telephone: 561-791-4045 Signature: bconerly@wellingtonfl.gov |

Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services

BId No. 2021 24

FORM CRL - CLIENT REFERENCE LETTER

| To Whom It May Concern, |
|---|
| Subject: Reference Letter for Bid No. 2021-24 Name of Bidder: Shenandoah General Construction |
| The above referenced contractor is submitting on a bid solicitation that has been issued by the Town. We require that the Bidder provide written references with their Bid submission and by providing you with this document the Contractor is requesting that you provide the following reference information. We would appreciate you providing the information requested below as well as any other information your feel is pertinent: |
| Name of Project: RFP/ITB#20-005 - Gravity Sanitary Sewer Closed Circuit TV Inspection |
| Name of Project Owner: Town of Highland Beach |
| Scope of work: Clean & Video Inspection of A1A Sanitary Sewer |
| Initial Value of Contract: \$\\\ \pmonth{107,307.50}\\ \\\ \\\ \\\ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ |
| Was the work performed timely: 🏿 Yes 🗆 No |
| Was the work completed within budget? ☑ Yes ☐ No |
| If no, did the Contractor contribute to the delay(s) or increased cost? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Quality of the work performed: ☐ Above expectations ☒ Average ☐ Below expectations |
| Was the Contractor responsive to the Project Owner? ☑ Yes □ No |
| Were the number of RFIs submitted reasonable for the scope of the project(s)? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Number of Change Orders: Were any Contractor driven? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Would you enter into a contract with the Contractor again in the future? ☑ Yes ☐ No |
| If no to any of the above, please provide details below. Provide any other comment you feel appropriate. |
| |
| |
| Thank you for your assistance in helping us in evaluating our bid solicitation. |
| Name: Pat Roman Date: U/23/21 |
| Title: Public works Director Telephone: 561-856-2963 |
| Signature: 101 / E-mail: PRoman@highlandbeach.us |

Margaret Lary

From: Margaret Lary

Sent:Thursday, April 22, 2021 3:23 PMTo:proman@highlandbeach.usSubject:Town of Miami Lakes Reference

Attachments: Highland Beach Reference Letter.pdf

Hi Pat,

Can you please fill out the attached reference letter and return to me and CC to procurement as soon as possible:

Procurement@miamilakes-fl.gov

Check Out Our New Website!!

Margaret Lary



Pipe Inspection & Restoration Specialist

Shenandoah General Construction

1888 NW 22nd Street, Pompano Beach, FL, 33069

M.Lary@shenandoahus.com | www.shenandoahus.com

Direct (954) 975-0098 Ext 106

 Corporate
 (954) 975-0098

 Fort Pierce
 (772) 467-8861

 Fort Myers
 (239) 337-9385

 Lakeland
 (863) 448-9939

This message is the property of Shenandoah General Construction. It is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is non-public, proprietary, privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law or may constitute as attorney work product. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, notify us immediately by telephone and (i) destroy this message if it's a facsimile or (ii) delete this message immediately if this is an electronic communication.

FORM CRL - CLIENT REFERENCE LETTER

| To Whom It May Concern, |
|---|
| Subject: Reference Letter for Bid No. 2021-24 Name of Bidder: Shenandoah General Construction |
| The above referenced contractor is submitting on a bid solicitation that has been issued by the Town. We require that the Bidder provide written references with their Bid submission and by providing you with this document the Contractor is requesting that you provide the following reference information. We would appreciate you providing the information requested below as well as any other information your feel is pertinent: Name of Project: E6M12-R0 Drainage Cleaning Miami Dade |
| · |
| Name of Project Owner: FDOT D6 |
| Scope of work: Clean & Televise Storm Drainage Systems |
| Initial Value of Contract: $\frac{300,000.00}{300,000.00}$ Is the contract still active? \square Yes X No Final Value of Contract: $\frac{300,000.00}{300,000.00}$ |
| Was the work performed timely: ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Was the work completed within budget? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| If no, did the Contractor contribute to the delay(s) or increased cost? \Box Yes \Box No |
| Quality of the work performed: \Box Above expectations \Box Average \Box Below expectations |
| Was the Contractor responsive to the Project Owner? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Were the number of RFIs submitted reasonable for the scope of the project(s)? \square Yes \square No |
| Number of Change Orders: Were any Contractor driven? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| Would you enter into a contract with the Contractor again in the future? ☐ Yes ☐ No |
| If no to any of the above, please provide details below. Provide any other comment you feel appropriate. |
| Thank you for your assistance in helping us in evaluating our bid solicitation. Name: Mohamed Alkorshemi Date: |
| Title: Telephone: 305-329-4199 |
| Signature: E-mail: Mohamed.Alkorshemi@dot.state.fl.us |

Margaret Lary

From: Margaret Lary

Sent:Thursday, April 22, 2021 3:28 PMTo:mohamed.alkorshemi@dot.state.fl.usSubject:Town of Miami Lakes Reference

Attachments: FDOT D6 E6M12R0 Reference Letter.pdf

Hi Mohamed,

Can you please fill out the attached reference letter and return to me and CC to procurement as soon as possible:

Procurement@miamilakes-fl.gov

Check Out Our New Website!!

Margaret Lary



Pipe Inspection & Restoration Specialist

Shenandoah General Construction

1888 NW 22nd Street, Pompano Beach, FL, 33069

M.Lary@shenandoahus.com | www.shenandoahus.com

Direct (954) 975-0098 Ext 106

 Corporate
 (954) 975-0098

 Fort Pierce
 (772) 467-8861

 Fort Myers
 (239) 337-9385

 Lakeland
 (863) 448-9939

This message is the property of Shenandoah General Construction. It is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is non-public, proprietary, privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law or may constitute as attorney work product. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, notify us immediately by telephone and (i) destroy this message if it's a facsimile or (ii) delete this message immediately if this is an electronic communication.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION CONTRACTOR

375-020-43 MAINTENANCE

FIELD PERFORMANCE REPORT

Contractor: Shenandoah General Construction Contract: E-6M12-R0 Evaluation Date: February 6, 2020 Type of Evaluation: O Periodic Final

| Category One Pursuit and Timely Completion of Work | |
|---|---------------------|
| | Performance |
| The Contractor performed all work in an effective and expedient manner. The Department's expectations regarding timely pursuit and completion of the work were often exceeded. | Excellent |
| Except for a few occasions, the Contractor completed all of the work within authorized timeframes. The Contractor consistently demonstrated sufficient efforts to complete work in a timely fashion. The Department's expectations regarding timely pursuit and completion of the work were usually met and sometimes exceeded. | Satisfactory |
| The Contractor occasionally completed the work in a timely manner, but efforts were consistently less than adequate. Department involvement was required on more than one occasion to prompt the Contractor to complete the work. | Unsatisfactory |
| The Contractor failed to complete the work in a timely fashion. On several occasions the Contractor failed to begin work in a timely fashion, and the Contractor made little effort to correct deficiencies. Substantial Department involvement was required to prompt completion of the work, including written correspondence advising the Contractor of potential default. Expectations were not met. | Poor |
| Notes & Comments | |
| Contractor provided excellent timely work and has no problems with department. Contractor was very atteres to be cleaned such as the heavy traffic intersections that some times had to be done at night. | entive to cover all |

| Category Two | |
|--|---|
| Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) & Safety Operations | Performance |
| MOT setups and compliance were proper with no correctable complaints from Department personnel and/or traveling public. No incidents or injuries occurred within work zones due to improper MOT. | Excellent |
| Qualified MOT personnel were present at all times. Expectations were exceeded, Contractor often went above and beyond FDOT Design Standard requirements to ensure safety for both work crews and traveling public. | (•) |
| MOT setups and compliance were mostly proper with few correctable complaints from Department personnel and/or traveling public. No incidents or injuries occurred within work zones due to improper | Satisfactory |
| MOT. Qualified MOT personnel were present. Expectations were met and exceeded occasionally. | |
| MOT setups and compliance were at times achieved, but there were several complaints and/or incidents of non-compliance. No major incidents or injuries occurred within work zones due to improper | Unsatisfactory |
| MOT. Qualified MOT personnel were usually present. Some involvement from Department personnel was required on a few occasions. Expectations were not consistently met. | 0 |
| Proper MOT deployment and overall compliance was lacking. Numerous correctable complaints from Department personnel and/or traveling public were noted. An incident with injuries may have occurred | Poor |
| Department personnel and/or traveling public were noted. An incident with injuries may have occurred within the work zone due to improper MOT. Qualified MOT personnel were seldom on site or in close proximity to the work site. Expectations were not met. | 0 |
| | N/A |
| N/A (To be used when MOT was not necessary or included in the contract). | 0 |
| Notes & Comments | GLES SPECIAL CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE |
| The contractor employees did a a great job on providing each other safety protection when operating the the truck mounted attenuator, to preform their moving operations. No incidents or injuries occurred. Expectation was met by the contractor. The MOT standards were applied correctly in a daily basis. | Jet Vactor and |

Contractor: Shenandoah General Construction

Contract: E-6M12-R0

Evaluation Date: Feb 6, 2020

| Category Three | |
|---|----------------|
| Timely and Complete Submittal of Documents and Reports | Performance |
| Written correspondence and documentation were error free and critical dates were met. | Excellent |
| Contractor adequately followed the contract from a written correspondence perspective. Quality in relation to written correspondence was good with few errors. | Satisfactory |
| Department personnel encountered issues with the overall quality of the written correspondence or overall timeliness of contract document submittal. | Unsatisfactory |
| Overall quality control from a correspondence/paperwork aspect was not met. Excessive prompting from Department personnel for required documentation was required and the correction of substandard low quality work was necessary. Contractor failed to submit required documents such as Form 21-A within allowable time. | Poor |
| Notes & Comments The contractor's office personnel did a good job on submitting and providing all written correspondence | |
| The contractor always tried to make sure all the supporting documents were attached to the invoice and were completed accurately and signed with the correct dates and the required signatures. Category Four | work documents |
| Overall Quality Control, Environmental Compliance, and Compliance with Contract Requirements | Performance |
| Contractor followed all of the requirements/conditions of the contract with superior quality in accordance with FDOT Standards and Specifications (including environmental issues if applicable). Contractor was self-sufficient requiring no help from the Department. | Excellent |
| Contractor consistently performed quality work operations according to the contract with few errors. | Satisfactory |
| Overall quality control in the field was not consistently met. Department personnel were often required to prompt the Contractor for correction of substandard or low quality work. | Unsatisfactory |
| The Department identified notable errors and failures to meet contract requirements. Overall quality control was only met on occasion. | Poor |

Notes & Comments

The contractor followed all requirements/conditions of the contract, and they continued to provide quality work to the department. The contractor's field personnel always try to have quality work and always try to take pictures of the work that has been done and properly mark the structures that has been cleaned with spray paint.

Contractor: Shenandoah General Construction
Contract: E-6M12-R0
Evaluation Date: Feb 6, 2020

| Category Five Interaction, coordination, and cooperation with Department personnel, traveling public, other | <u> </u> |
|--|----------------------------------|
| contractors, property owners and other Governmental agencies | Performance |
| Interaction with Department personnel was outstanding; no complaints from the traveling public or adjacent property owners were noted. The Contractor handled any issues that arose, notifying the Department of the outcome. Positive feedback from the public was noted. Expectations were often exceeded. | Excellent |
| Few, if any, complaints from the traveling public or adjacent property owners were noted. When a concern was expressed, the Contractor was quick to resolve it. Positive interaction with Department personnel with some positive feedback from the public was noted. Expectations were always met and occasionally exceeded. | Satisfactory |
| Some complaints from outside parties and Department personnel were noted (mostly minor in nature). Most complaints were handled in a timely manner. Expectations were not consistently met. | Unsatisfactory |
| Numerous complaints were received about work operations, staging of equipment, and/or poor attitude. The Contractor repeatedly failed to follow instructions; communication and cooperation was inadequate. | Poor |
| Notes & Comments | |
| The contractor never received complains from traveling public or property owners. When the department has any concerns or issues the contractor always been quick to resolve them. The field crew was highly qualified and capable to solve problems on daily basis such as finding buried memoving roots by using ROOTX such as in the location SW 40th street, Bird Rd in Front of the school of Ponce Deleon. Coordination with the department was very good. | nanholes and on the corner of |

| Category Six Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Reporting | Performance |
|--|----------------|
| Contractor's staff was very well qualified and capable to address sufficient utilization of the Equal Opportunity Compliance (EOC) System application to collect, review, and report any DBE commitments/payments. Periodic checks of the EOC System by Department personnel revealed no issues and no follow up with the Contractor in regard to DBE issues was required. | Excellent |
| Contractor's staff sufficiently utilized the Equal Opportunity Compliance (EOC) System to adequately collect, review and report DBE commitments/payments. Periodic checks of the EOC System by Department personnel revealed very few issues and minimal follow up with the Contractor in regard to DBE issues was required. | Satisfactory |
| Contractor demonstrated little interest in utilizing the EOC system to collect, review, and report any DBE commitments/payments. Requests for the Contractor to utilize the system were repeatedly made by Department personnel and follow up with the Contractor was often required. | Unsatisfactory |
| Contractor failed to adequately report DBE commitments/payments. Requests for the Contractor to correct errors within the system were repeatedly made by the Department; excessive/recurring assistance to the Contractor was necessary. | Poor |
| N/A (To be used when the Contractor is exempt from DBE reporting requirements.) | N/A |
| Notes & Comments | |
| The contractor met all the requirements in regards to DBE information. | 2 |

| Overall Score | 100 |
|---------------|-----|
|---------------|-----|

Contractor: Shenandoah General Construction

Contract: E-6M12-R0

Evaluation Date: Feb 6, 2020

Summary

Overall the contractor has successfully provided all work with excellent work ethics. The contractor continued to provide the Department proper documentation and submitted in a timely manner. The accuracy of the documentation made the department's work easy. Interaction, communication, and coordination with the department was very good. Shenandoah did a good job during this period.

| Pursuit and Timely Complet | ion of Work | | Excellent |
|--|---|---------------------|---|
| Maintenance of Traffic (MO | T) & Safety Operations | | Excellent |
| Timely and Complete Subm | ittal of Documents and | Reports | Excellent |
| Overall Quality Control, Env Compliance with Contract R | ironmental Compliance equirements | e, and | Excellent |
| Interaction, coordination, an traveling public, other contra and Government agencies | d cooperation with Dep actors, property owners | eartment personnel, | Excellent |
| Disadvantaged Business En | terprise (DBE) Reporti | ng | Excellent |
| CONTRACTOR (Signature does not indicate one | 2/17/2020 | Reviewed By. | opiect Manager Date Date Date Date Date |
| (Signature does not indicate cor | ncurrence) | Reviewed By: | strict Mainterlance Engineer Date |

COPIES:
Contractor
Project File
District Maintenance Engineer - Original
Cost Center Manager

SWORN STATEMENT ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS.

1.

| | This sworn statement is submitted to the Town of Miami Lakes | |
|------------|--|------------|
| by | Daniel DiMura, President | |
| <i>,</i> - | (print individual's name and title) | |
| for | Shenandoah General Construction LLC | |
| | [print name of entity submitting sworn statement] | |
| who | ose business address is 1888 NW 22 Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33069 | |
| and | (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is _ | 59-1707673 |
| (If t | he entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the indiv | ridual |
| sigr | ning this sworn statement:) | |

- 2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)9g), Florida Statutes, means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods and services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- 3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, means a finding of guilt or a conviction or a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- 4. I understand than an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(a), Florida Statutes, means:
 - a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
 - b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime.

The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who

has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of an entity.

6. Based on information and belief, the statement that I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. [Indicate which statement applies.]

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, not any affiliate of the entity, has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

This entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. [attach a copy of the final order]

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO

UNDERSTAND <u>THAT</u> I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Daniel DiMura to me well known and known by me to be the person described herein and who executed the foregoing Affidavit and acknowledged to and before me that Daniel DiMura executed said Affidavit for the purpose therein expressed.

therein expressed.

WITNESS, my hand and official seal this 22 day of

My Commission Expires:

TERRI CARRICK-PIERCE
MY COMMISSION # GG 982729

EXPIRES: June 13, 2024

Notary Public State of Florina and April 21

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

| State of Florida } State of Florida } SS: | |
|--|---|
| County of Broward } | |
| Daniel DiMura being first duly | y sworn, deposes and says that: |
| attached Proposal; b) He/she is fully informed respecting the pre pertinent circumstances respecting such Propo c) Such Proposal is genuine and is not collusived) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its office or parties in interest, including this affiant, had directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, fi connection with the Work for which the attachment proposing in connection with such work; or had to fix the price or prices in the attached Proposition or cost elements of the Proposal price or the lany collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlaw person interested in the proposed work; e)Price or prices quoted in the attached Proposed. | re or a sham Proposal; ers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, employees eve in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, erm, or person to submit a collusive or sham Proposal in eached Proposal has been submitted; or to refrain from eve in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by person sal or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, Proposal price of any other Bidder, or to secure through eventual agreement any advantage against (Recipient), or any exposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any agreement on the part of the Bidder or any other of its |
| Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: By Witness By | |
| | Daniel DiMura |
| Witness | (Printed Name) President |
| | (Title) |
| | rsonally appeared Daniel DiMura to me well known and rein and who executed the foregoing Affidavit and |
| WITNESS, my hand and official seal this $\frac{22}{}$ | 2_ day of _April, 2021 _ |
| My Commission Expires: TER MY COMMISSION EXPIRES EXF | RI CARRICK-PIERCE MMISSION # GG 982729 PIRES: June 13, 2024 nru Notary Public Underwriters |

ANTI-KICKBACK AFFIDAVIT

| STATE OF FLORIDA } COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE } | |
|---|--|
| I, the undersigned, hereby duly | sworn, depose and say that no portion of the sum herein |
| bid will be paid to any employees | of the Town of Miami Lakes, its elected officials, and |
| or its design consulta | ants, as a commission, kickback, reward or gift, directly or |
| indirectly by me or any member of my fi | rm or by an officer of the corporation. By: |
| | Daniel DiMura, President |
| | thority, personally appeared <u>Daniel DiMura</u> to me well erson described herein and who executed the foregoing |
| Affidavit and acknowledged to and befo | ore me that Daniel DiMura executed said |
| Affidavit for the purpose therein express | sed. |
| WITNESS, my hand and official se | eal this <u>22</u> day of <u>April</u> . |
| My Commission Expires: Notary Public State of Florida at Large | TERRI CARRICK-PIERCE MY COMMISSION # GG 982729 EXPIRES: June 13, 2024 Bonded Thru Notary Public Underwriters |
| | |

CONFLICT OF INTEREST AFFIDAVIT

| State of Florida } SS: County of Broward } SS: County of Broward } Daniel DiMura being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is the (Owner Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of Shenandoah General Const. LLChe Proposer that has submitted the attached Proposal and certifies the following; Proposer certifies by submitting its Proposal that no elected official, committee member, or employee of the Town has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Proposal or any compensation to be paid under or through the award of a contract, and that no Town employee, nor any elected or appointed official (including Town committee members) of the Town, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed official of the Town, may be a partner, officer, director or employee on Proposer, and further, that no such Town employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Proposer. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any contract award containing an exception to these restrictions must be expressly approved by the Town Council. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this solicitation, if any Propose violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the Town, the provisions of Miami Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to Town, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting any future bids or proposals for goods or services to the Town. The terms "Proposer" as used herein, includes any person or entity making a bid or proposal to the Town to p |
|--|
| Daniel DiMura being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is the (Owner Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of Shenandoah General Const. LLChe Proposer that has submitted the attached Proposal and certifies the following; Proposer certifies by submitting its Proposal that no elected official, committee member, or employee or the Town has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Proposal or any compensation to be paid under or through the award of a contract, and that no Town employee, nor any elected or appointed official (including Town committee members) of the Town, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed official of the Town, may be a partner, officer, director or employee or Proposer, and further, that no such Town employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Proposer. Materia interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any contract award containing an exception to these restrictions must be expressly approved by the Town Council. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this solicitation, if any Proposer violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the Town, the provisions of Miami-Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to Town, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting any future bids or proposals for goods or services to the Town. The terms "Proposer" as used herein, includes any person or entity making a bid or proposal to the Town to provide goods or services. Proposer further certifies that the price or prices quoted in the Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, |
| Partner, Officer, Representative or Agent) of Shenandoah General Const. LLC the Proposer that has submitted the attached Proposal and certifies the following; Proposer certifies by submitting its Proposal that no elected official, committee member, or employee of the Town has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Proposal or any compensation to be paid under or through the award of a contract, and that no Town employee, nor any elected or appointed official (including Town committee members) of the Town, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed official of the Town, may be a partner, officer, director or employee or Proposer, and further, that no such Town employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Proposer. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any contract award containing an exception to these restrictions must be expressly approved by the Town Council. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this solicitation, if any Propose violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the Town, the provisions of Miami-Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to Town, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting any future bids or proposals for goods or services to the Town. The terms "Proposer" as used herein, includes any person or entity making a bid or proposal to the Town to provide goods or services. Proposer further certifies that the price or prices quoted in the Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Proposer on any other of it |
| Proposer certifies by submitting its Proposal that no elected official, committee member, or employee of the Town has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Proposal or any compensation to be paid under or through the award of a contract, and that no Town employee, nor any elected or appointed official (including Town committee members) of the Town, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed official of the Town, may be a partner, officer, director or employee or Proposer, and further, that no such Town employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Proposer. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any contract award containing an exception to these restrictions must be expressly approved by the Town Council. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this solicitation, if any Proposer violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the Town, the provisions of Miami-Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to Town, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting any future bids or proposals for goods or services to the Town. The terms "Proposer" as used herein, includes any person or entity making a bid or proposal to the Town to provide goods or services. Proposer further certifies that the price or prices quoted in the Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Proposer or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees of parties in interest, including this affiant. |
| the Town has a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Proposal or any compensation to be paid under or through the award of a contract, and that no Town employee, nor any elected or appointed official (including Town committee members) of the Town, nor any spouse, parent or child of such employee or elected or appointed official of the Town, may be a partner, officer, director or employee or Proposer, and further, that no such Town employee or elected or appointed officer, or the spouse, parent or child of any of them, alone or in combination, may have a material interest in the Proposer. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of the Proposer. Any contract award containing an exception to these restrictions must be expressly approved by the Town Council. Further, Proposer recognizes that with respect to this solicitation, if any Proposer violates or is a party to a violation of the ethics ordinances or rules of the Town, the provisions of Miami-Dade County Code Section 2-11.1, as applicable to Town, or the provisions of Chapter 112, part III, Fla Stat., the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, such Proposer may be disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Proposal is submitted and may be further disqualified from submitting any future bids or proposals for goods or services to the Town. The terms "Proposer" as used herein, includes any person or entity making a bid or proposal to the Town to provide goods or services. Proposer further certifies that the price or prices quoted in the Proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Proposer or any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees of parties in interest, including this affiant. |
| tainted by any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Proposer of any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees of parties in interest, including this affiant. |
| Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: |
| |
| Witness By: |
| Daniel DiMura |
| Witness (Printed Name) President |
| |
| (Title) BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared Daniel DiMura to me well known and known |
| by me to be the person described herein and who executed the foregoing Affidavit and acknowledged to and before me that Daniel DiMura executed said Affidavit for the purpose therein expressed. |
| WITNESS, my hand and official seal this $\frac{22}{}$ day of April $\frac{21}{}$. |
| My Commission Expires: TERRI CARRICK-PIERCE |
| Notary Public State of Florida at Large Notary Public State of Florida at Large Notary Public State of Florida at Large Notary Public Underwriters Form COI |

COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

The Town of Miami Lakes shall comply with the Public Records Law as provided by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and all applicable amendments. Applicants must invoke the exemptions to disclosure provided by law in the response to the solicitation and must identify the data or other materials to be protected by separate envelope, and must state the reasons why such exclusion from public disclosure is necessary. The submission of a response authorizes release of your firm's credit data to the Town of Miami Lakes.

If the company submits information exempt from public disclosure, the company must identify with specificity which pages/paragraphs of their submittal/proposal package are exempt from the Public Records Act, identifying the specific exemption section that applies to each. The protected information must be submitted to the Town in a separate envelope marked "EXEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAW". Failure to identify protected material via a separately marked envelopment will cause the Town to release this information in accordance with the Public Records Law despite any markings on individual pages of your submittal/proposal.

- (a) CONTRACTOR acknowledges TOWN'S obligations under Article 1, Section 24, Florida Constitution and Chapter 119, Florida Statues, to release public records to members of the public upon request. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that TOWN is required to comply with Article 1, Section 24, Florida Constitution and Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, in the handling of the materials created under this Agreement and that said statute controls over the terms of this Agreement.
- (b) CONTRACTOR specifically acknowledges its obligations to comply with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, with regard to public records, and shall:
 - 1. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by TOWN in order to perform the services required under this Agreement;
 - 2. Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that TOWN would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law;
 - 3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law; and
 - 4. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost to the TOWN, all public records in possession of CONTRACTOR upon termination of this Agreement and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to TOWN in a format that is compatible with the information technology system of TOWN.
- (c) Failure to comply with this Section shall be deemed a material breach of this Contract for which TOWN may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to CONTRACTOR.

By submitting a response to this solicitation, the company agrees to defend the Town in the event we are forced to litigate the public records status of the company's documents.

| Company Name: Shenandoah G | General Construction LLC | |
|--|--------------------------|--------------------|
| Authorized representative (print): | Daniel DiMura, President | |
| Authorized representative (signature): | JA . | 4/22/2021 Date: |



PUBLIC RELATIONS AFFIDAVIT

| Bidder's N | Shenandoah Ge | neral Constru | ction LLC Solicitation No.: | 2021-24 |
|------------|--|------------------------|---|---------------------|
| | | | any personal or business cted representative of the To | |
| Proposer s | shall disclose to the Towr | 1: | | |
| a) | Any direct or indirect prepresentative of the To | ersonal interes wn. | ts in a vendor held by any | employee or elected |
| | None | | | _ |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | |
| p) | Any family relationships None | with any emplo | yee or elected representativ | e of the Town. |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | |
| | Last name | First name | Relationship | , I |
| | | | April 22, 2021 | |
| | Authorized Signature | UHULAN OLAK | Date: | |
| | Daniel DiMura | | Vice President | |
| | Print Name | • | Title: | |



ITB 2021-24

Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services

Addendum #1

Due Date: 11:00AM, April 23, 2021

This addendum is incorporated into and made a part of the Invitation to Bid ("ITB"). The following may include clarifications, revisions, additions, deletions, or answers to questions received relative to the RFP, which take precedence over the ITB documents. <u>Underlined</u> word(s) indicate additions. Deletions are indicated by strikethrough.

Clarifications:

1. Section B2.03, Estimated Quantities, is hereby amended as follows:

"The quantities stated on the Bid Form are solely estimates of what the Town anticipates its needs are for the initial year term of the Contract."

2. Section D9, Warranty, is hereby amended as follows:

"All Work must have a one (1) year warranty on labor from the date of acceptance of the Work by the Town under the Contract. Contractor must provide a minimum written warranty of one (1) year on all equipment, parts, or material unless the manufacturer provides a longer warranty. Where the manufacturer of the equipment, parts, or material provides a warranty greater than one (1) year, or other stipulated time frame, then the manufacturer's warranty term will take precedence. Contractor will be required to provide the Project Manager a copy of the manufacturer's warranty prior to the Town issuing final payment. Manufacturer's warranties will become effective upon Final Completion of the Project."

Questions:

1. Does the Town expect to clean all the approximate 1,000 structures and 59,000' of storm sewers during the course of a year?

Response: The quantities listed are estimated quantities the Town anticipates during the term of the contract.

2. What is the annual estimated expenditure for this project?

Response: Refer to Section B2.03.

3. Is there an engineer's estimate or budget for this project?

Response: Refer to Section B2.03.

4. Is there past pricing for this contract or a similar project?

Response: Currently, work is being performed in-house. Through this new contract, the Town is looking to supplement the current level of service.

5. Section D1. Specifications states work to be done on an "as-call basis." What is a minimum call-out for this project?

Response: Refer to Section B2.03

Date Posted: April 20, 2021



- What will be the procedure when roots are encountered in drainage pipes?
 Response: If roots are encountered in the drainage pipes, the Contractor shall notify the Town of this condition.
- 7. Emergency work is referenced in Section D1 as a line-item. However, there is no line-item for emergency work in Form PS. Please clarify.

Response: There is no separate line item for emergency work. Refer to Section D1. Emergency work will be paid at the unit prices provide in Attachment PS- Price Sheet.

8. Please confirm that a bid bond is not required.

Response: There is no bid bond required.

9. Who is responsible for filling out Form CRL – Client Reference Letter?

Response: Form CRL is to be filled out by the reference. If there is insufficient time for reference to fill out Form CRL, Bidders can fill out the Form and the Town will contact references to verify.

10. Can the completed bid be emailed?

Response: The Town will not accept an emailed bid. Please refer to Solicitation Overview in Section A. Notice to Bidders of the ITB for instructions on how to deliver bids.

| Acknowledgement: | |
|-------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Name of Signatory , | Signature |
| Daniel DiMura President | Shenandoah General Construction LLC |
| Title | Name of Bidder |
| April 22, 2021 | |
| Date | |

Date Posted: April 20, 2021

Town of Miami Lakes Storm Drainage System Cleaning Services ITB 2021-24 Price Sheet-Form PP

Note: Proposer's pricing as submitted will determine the ("Total Price Amount") for the purpose of evaluating the Proposals. However, unless otherwise stated in the Price Sheet Notes the Contractor will be paid based on actual work performed. See Price Sheet Form Notes for line item details.

| Item No. | Description | Unit of Measure | Quantity | Un | it Price | Extended Price |
|----------|----------------------------|-----------------|-----------|------|----------|------------------|
| 1 | Catch Basins | Each | 750 | \$ | 75.00 | \$ 56,250.00 |
| 2 | Manholes | Each | 250 | \$ | 75.00 | \$ 18,750.00 |
| 3 | Stormwater Pipes 12" - 24" | Linear Foot | 51,000 | \$ | 2.00 | \$ 102,000.00 |
| 4 | Stormwater Pipes 25" - 36" | Linear Foot | 8,000 | \$ | 5.00 | \$ 40,000.00 |
| 5 | CCTV Inspections 12" - 24" | Linear Foot | 500 | \$ | 3.00 | \$ 1,500.00 |
| 6 | CCTV Inspections 25" - 36" | Linear Foot | 160 | \$ | 3.00 | \$ 480.00 |
| | | | TOTAL PRI | CE A | MOUNT | \$ 218.980.00 |

Notes:

1. Unit price shall include all labor, materials, equipment, supervision, and transportation costs.

2. The Town will reimburse disposal fees separately. The Contractor shall submit disposal fee receipts to the Town.

Firm's Name:

Shenandoah General Construction L

Signature:

Print Name/Title:

Daniel DiMura, President

Email Address:

M.Lary@shenandoahus.com

Shenandoah General Construction 1888 NW 22 Street Pompano Beach, FL 33659 (954) 975-0098

| Project Name & Number | Location | Owner | Contact & Phone # | Project Type | Description of Work | Contract | Amount 5 | Start Date | Contract Amount Start Date Completion Date | Staffin Zobarth/PM |
|--|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|---|--------------------------|--|----------|--------------|------------|--|--|
| Clean and Video Inspection of Sanitary Sewer Systems | Delray Beach | City of Delray Beach | Spencer Britt (561) 243-77000 ext 7164 By Work Order Clean, TV. Lining 1(561) 243-7314 Fax. 434 S. Swhiton Ave., Delay Beach, F. L. 3344 beinflowydefarbeach, com | By Work Order | Clean, TV, Lining | 3 1,10 | 1,100,000.00 | 5/1/2017 | 0 | 12/31/2020 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| RFP/ITB#20-005 - Gravity Sanitary Sewer Town of Highland Beach Closed Circuit TV Inspection | - | Town of Highland Beach | cean Blvd., 7 - 561-856. seach.us | Project Type | Ctean & Video Inspection of A1A Sanitary Sewer | s 10 | 107,307.50 | 7/15/2020 | 12/13/2020 | 12/13/2020 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| 15-106C Storm Sewer & Sewer Main Cleaning & Repairs | Broward County | School Board of Broward County | lan Superville - 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., #323, Sunrise, Ft. 33351 (754) 321-0501 | By Work Order | By Work Order Clean, Televise, Sanitary / Storm Drainage | 5 5 | 97,101.94 | 6/18/2015 | 6/17/2020 | 6/17/2020 Oversee Daily Production. Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| 2015-035 - Culvert, Catch Basin & Drainage Cleaning | Lauderhili | City of Lauderhill | Charlie Cuyler (954) 730-2960 - 5581 W. Oakland Park Bivd., Lauderhill, FL 33313 - ccuyler@lauderhill-fl.gov | By Work Order Clean/TV | CleanTV | 8 | 337,300.00 | 9/21/2015 | 9/20/2018 | 9/20/2018 Oversee Daily Production. Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| E4R36-R0 - Clean, Video & Repair Leaks Palm Beach County | | FDOT D4 | | By Work Order Clean/TV | Olean/TV | S | 620,000.00 | 3/30/2016 | 7/20/2019 | 7720/2019 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| E6K04-R0 -Inlet & Pipe Cleaning | North Miami | FDOT D6 | N Miami 197 | By Work Order Clean/TV | Clean∕TV | S 45 | 450,000.00 | 12/9/2015 | 1/16/2019 | 1/16/2019 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| Districtwide Storm Sewer Inspection RFPDOT15/16-4006PM | District 4 Areas | FDOT D4 | Ruben Rodriguez (954) 777-4140 3400 W. Commencal Blvd., Ft Lauderdale, FL 33309 Ruben Rodriquez@dat state fl.us | By Work Order | By Work Order Clean/TV/Inspection | \$ | 380,000.00 | 2/5/2016 | 2/4/2019 | 2/4/2019 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |
| E5K08-R0 -Inlet & Pipe Cleaning | Miami Dade - South Dade FDOT D6 | FDOT D6 | 7200 7200 | By Work Order Clean/TV | Clean∕TV | \$ 1,20 | 1,200,000.00 | 1/19/2016 | 1/17/2019 | 1/17/2019 Oversee Daily Production, Schedule Work and Track with Superintendent |

Partial List of Completed Projects References

Shenandoah General Construction 1888 NW 22 Street Pompano Beach, FL 33069 (954) 975-0098

| Start Date Completion | 12/31/2020 | | 12/31/2020 | | 9/24/2020 | | | 12/13/2020 | - | 1/23/2020 | |
|-------------------------|--|-----------------------------|---|-------------------------|--|--|-------|--|--------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|
| Start Date | 9/21/2015 | | 5/1/2017 | | 3/24/2015 | | | 7/15/2020 | | 1/25/2019 | |
| Contract | \$ 900,000.00 | | \$1,100,000.00 | | \$1,805,009.78 | | | \$ 107,307.50 | | \$ 300,000.00 | |
| Description of Work | By Work Order Clean/TV/Sliplining/CIPP | | Clean, TV, Lining | | By Work Order Clean/TV/Sliplining/CIPP | | | Clean & Video Inspection of A1A Sanitary Sewer | | Clean, Televise Storm | Crainage System |
| Project Type | By Work Order | | By Work Order | | By Work Order | | | Project Type | | By Work Order | |
| Contact & Phone # | Laura Lee (561)289 -8414 LLe@wpb.org 401 | Clematis St., WPB, FL 33401 | Spencer Britt (561) 243-7000 ext 7164 / By Work Order Clean, TV, Lining (561) 243-7314 Fax. 434 S. Swinton Avo. Polery Bassh El 34444 | britt@mydelraybeach.com | 5 | bconerly@wellingtonfi.gov 12300 Forest Hill Blvd., Wellington, FL | 33414 | Pat Roman303 South Ocean Blvd., Highland Beach, FL 33487 - 561-856- | 2963 - Proman@highlandbeach.us | Mohamed Alkorshemi - 14655 SW 122 By Work Order Clean, Televise Storm | Mohamed Alkorshemi@dot.state.ff.us |
| Owner | City of West Palm Beach | | City of Delray Beach | | Village of Wellington | | | | | FDOT D6 | |
| Location | West Palm Beach | | Deiray Beach | | Wellington | | | Town of Highland | | Miami Dade - South Dade | |
| Project Name & Number | ITB 14-15-119 Master Contract Sanitary Sewer & Stormwater Rehab & | Infrastructure Repair | Cleaning, Televising and Inspection of Sanitary Sewer | | ITB 003-15/DZ - Annual Drainage | Infrastructure Inspection, Cleaning & Repair | | RFP/ITB#20-005 - Gravity Sanitary Sewer Town of Highland Town of Highland Beach Closed Circuit TV Inspection | | E6M12-R0 - Drainage Cleaning Miami | |

Halsey Beshears, Secretary



STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY & EXCAVATION CO HEREIN IS CERTIFIED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 489, FLORIDA STATUTES

ZEBARTH, STAFFIN COLBY

SHENANDOAH GENERAL CONSTRUCTION, LLC 1888 NW 22 ST POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

LICENSE NUMBER: CUC1223821

EXPIRATION DATE: AUGUST 31, 2022

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com

Do not alter this document in any form.

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.





overnor



STATE OF FLORIDA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY & EXCAVATION CO HEREIN IS CERTIFIED UNDER THE CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 489, FLORIDA STATUTES

GUGLIELMI, ANTHONY

SHENANDOAH GENERAL CONSTRUCTION, LLC 1888 NW 22ND STREET POMPANO BEACH FL 33069

LICENSE NUMBER: CUC1225783

EXPIRATION DATE: AUGUST 31, 2022

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com

Do not alter this document in any form.

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.



BROWARD COUNTY LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT

115 S. Andrews Ave., Rm. A-100, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1895 – 954-831-4000 VALID OCTOBER 1, 2020 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

 $\begin{array}{c} \textbf{DBA:} \\ \textbf{Business Name:} \\ \text{LLC} \end{array}$

Receipt #:189-6135
ALL OTHER TYPES CONTRACTOR
Business Type: (UNDERGROUND

UTILITY/EXCAVATION) Business Opened:09/12/2008

Owner Name: STAFFIN ZEBARTH Business Location: 1888 NW 22 ST

State/County/Cert/Reg:CUC1223821

POMPANO BEACH

Exemption Code:

Business Phone: 954-973-3060

Rooms

Seats

Employees

Machines

Professionals

28

| | | Fo | or Vending Business Or | ily | | |
|------------|------------------|---------|------------------------|--------------|-----------------|------------|
| | Number of Machir | nes: | | Vending Type |): | |
| Tax Amount | Transfer Fee | NSF Fee | Penalty | Prior Years | Collection Cost | Total Paid |
| 81.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 81.00 |

THIS RECEIPT MUST BE POSTED CONSPICUOUSLY IN YOUR PLACE OF BUSINESS

THIS BECOMES A TAX RECEIPT

WHEN VALIDATED

This tax is levied for the privilege of doing business within Broward County and is non-regulatory in nature. You must meet all County and/or Municipality planning and zoning requirements. This Business Tax Receipt must be transferred when the business is sold, business name has changed or you have moved the business location. This receipt does not indicate that the business is legal or that it is in compliance with State or local laws and regulations.

Mailing Address:

STAFFIN ZEBARTH 1888 NW 22 STREET POMPANO BEACH, FL 33069-1318

Receipt #WWW-19-00211146 Paid 09/14/2020 81.00

2020 - 2021

BROWARD COUNTY LOCAL BUSINESS TAX RECEIPT

115 S. Andrews Ave., Rm. A-100, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301-1895 – 954-831-4000 VALID OCTOBER 1, 2020 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

DBA:
SHENANDOAH GENERAL CONSTRUCTION LLC
Business Name:

Receipt #: 189-6135
Business Type: ALL OTHER TYPES CONTRACTOR

(UNDERGROUND

Owner Name: STAFFIN ZEBARTH

Business Location: 1888 NW 22 ST

Business Opened: 09/12/2008

State/County/Cert/Reg: CUC1223821

Exemption Code:

POMPANO BEACH

Business Phone: 954-973-3060

Machines

Professionals

Rooms

Seats

Employees

28

| Si | gnature | | F | or Vending Business Or | nly | | |
|----|------------|----------------|---------|------------------------|--------------|-----------------|------------|
| | | Number of Mach | ilnes: | | Vending Type | | |
| | Tax Amount | Transfer Fee | NSF Fee | Penalty | Prior Years | Colfection Cost | Total Paid |
| | 81.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 0.00 | 81.00 |